
 

 
PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 
  

Thursday, May 26, 2022                                                                          Frankfort Village Hall        
6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of May 12, 2022 

 
4. Plat Approval: Lots 4, 5 & 6 Original Town of Frankfort – Gutschenritter Resubdivision 

Request: Approval of a final plat of subdivision to combine Lots 4, 5 & 6 of the Original Town of 
Frankfort Subdivision to create Walnut Street Subdivision, containing Lots 1 & 2.  

 
5. Public Hearing (Continued from April 28th, 2022): Olde Stone Subdivision 1st Addition (Ref #108) 

Public Hearing Request:  Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) upon annexation from E-R (Estate 
Residential) to R-2 (Single Family Residential).  Other: Plat of Annexation, Final Plat of Subdivision and 
Plat of Dedication to create a 15 buildable-lot addition to the Olde Stone Subdivision. (PINs: 19-09-31-400-
013-0000, 19-09-31-400-016-0010, 19-09-31-400-016-0020.) TO BE TABLED AT THE REQUEST OF 
THE APPLICANT UNTIL JUNE 23, 2022.  

 
6. Public Hearing: 8531 W. Lincoln Highway – Oasis Assisted Living (Ref #104) 

Public Hearing Request: Special Use Permit for assisted living facility. Other requests: Final Plat of 
Subdivision (PIN: 19-09-23-300-031-0000). TO BE TABLED AT THE REQUEST OF THE APPLICANT 
UNTIL JUNE 9, 2022. 

 
7. Public Hearing:  19948 Lily Court – Gale Residence (Ref #105) 

Public Hearing Request:  To permit construction of a rear yard addition to a single-family home on Lot 29 
in the La Porte Meadows Subdivision.  The property is zoned R-2, which requires a 30’ rear yard setback, 
whereas 17’ 3” is proposed.  (PIN: 19-09-15-205-019-0000)  

 
8. Public Hearing: 9093 W. Fey Drive – Proposed Pickleball Building (Ref #106) 

Public Hearing Request: Special Use Permit for indoor recreation use in the I-1 (Limited Industrial) zone 
district (new construction).  (PIN: 19-09-34-202-001-0000) 
 

9. Workshop: 20801 S. La Grange Road – Chase Bank  
Future Public Hearing Request: Variance to permit service/utility areas (rooftop solar panels) that are not 
screened from view. (PIN 19-09-22-101-027-0000)   
 

10. Workshop: 20879 S. La Grange Road – Facen4Ward event space 
Future Public Hearing Request: Special Use Permit for an indoor entertainment use in the B-2 Community 
Business district. (PIN 19-09-22-100-051-0000) 
 

11. Workshop:  9350 W. Laraway Road – Savana Expedited LLC – Special Use Permits for a Truck 
Terminal and Automobile (Truck/Trailer) Repair 



Page 2 

Future Public Hearing Request:  Special Use Permits for a Truck Terminal and Automobile 
(Truck/Trailer) Repair in the I-2 General Industrial District.  Other:  Preliminary and Final Plat of 
Subdivision to create a single-lot subdivision. (PIN 19-09-27-300-023-0000)  
 

12. Public Comments 
 
13. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
14. Other Business 

 
15. Attendance Confirmation (June 9, 2022) 

 
16. Adjournment 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 
shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 
items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 
persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 
forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 12, 2022                                                             1 

MINUTES 
MEETING OF VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT 

PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
        MAY 12, 2022–VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING    
 432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 

 
 
Call to Order: Chair Rigoni called the meeting to order at 6:32 P.M. 

 
 
Commissioners Present: Chair Maura Rigoni, Nichole Schaeffer, David Hogan, 

Jessica Jakubowski, Brian James 
 
 
 Commissioners Absent: Dan Knieriem, Will Markunas 
  
Staff Present: Director of Community and Economic Development 

Mike Schwarz, Senior Planner, Christopher Gruba 
 
Elected Officials Present:  Mayor Ogle 
 
A. Swearing in of new PC-ZBA commissioner Brian James 
 
Mayor Ogle swore-in new PC-ZBA commissioner Brian James.  
 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes from April 14, 2022  

 
Motion (#1): Approval of the minutes, as presented, from April 14, 2022 

 
Motion by: Hogan Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (4-0, James abstained) 
 

C. Approval of the Minutes from April 28, 2022  
 

Schwarz noted several corrections to the minutes and read them aloud.  
 

Motion (#2): Approval of the minutes, as amended, from April 28, 2022 
 

Motion by: Schaeffer Seconded by: Hogan 
 
Approved: (2-0, Hogan, James and Schaeffer abstained) 
 

D. Plan Commissioner Training Session 
Phil Green, AICP, Transportation and Long-Range Planner for the Village of Hoffman 
Estates, and Tom Farace, AICP, Planning and Economic Development Manager for 
the Village of Carol Stream, presented the Plan Commissioner training session 
organized through the Illinois Chapter of the American Planning Association and the 

 
 



Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals – May 12, 2022                                                             2 

DePaul University Chaddick Institute for Metropolitan Development. 
 

E. Public Comments 
 
 Chair Rigoni noted that there were no members of the public remaining in attendance 
so there were no public comments.  

 
F. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
Schwarz noted that the Special Use requests for 14 Hickory Street 14 B (Studio 
C/Frankfort Arts Association) and 21218 S. La Grange (StretchLab) would be 
considered by the Village Board on May 16th, 2022.  

 
G. Other Business 

 
Chair Rigoni noted that there was no other business.  

 
H. Attendance Confirmation (May 26, 2022) 

 
Chair Rigoni asked the Commissioners to notify staff if they will not be in attendance 
on May 26th.  
 

Motion (#3): Adjournment 9:36 p.m. 
 
Motion by: Hogan            Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Unanimously approved by voice vote. 
 
Approved May 12, 2022 
 
As Presented _____ As Amended _____ 
 
_____________________ /s/Maura Rigoni, Chair 
 
 
_____________________ s/ Secretary 



  1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA  May 26, 2022 

 
 
Project: Gutschenritter Resubdivision 
Meeting Type:  Non-Public Hearing 
Request: Plat of Resubdivision (Lot Combination) 
Location:   Lots 4, 5 & 6  
Subdivision:  Original Town of Frankfort 
Applicant:  Stephen Gutschenritter 
Prop. Owners: Stephen Gutschenritter (for all lots) 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Sizes: Lot 4 (142 Walnut): 6,275 square feet    Figure 1. Location Map 
 Lot 5 (no address): 6,275 square feet 
 Lot 6 (150 Walnut): 6,275 square feet     
           
PIN(s): 19-09-28-217-006-0000,   
 19-09-28-217-008-0000,  
 19-09-28-217-009-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Properties Single-Family 
& vacant 

Single Fam. 
Detached 

R-2 

North Single Fam. 
Detached 

Single Fam. 
Detached 

R-2 

South  Single Fam. 
Detached 

Single Fam. 
Detached 

R-2 

East Single Fam. 
Detached 

Single Fam. 
Detached 

R-2 

West Single Fam. 
Detached 

Single Fam. 
Detached 

R-2 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant is requesting a Plat of Resubdivision to consolidate Lots 4, 5 and 6 of the Original Town of Frankfort.  
All three existing lots measure 50’ wide by 125.5’ deep, or 6,275 square feet.  The minimum lot width and lot 
depth in the R-2 zone district is 100’ wide by 150’ deep and each lot must be at least 15,000 square feet in area.  
Currently, all three lots are existing, non-conforming regarding lot width, depth and area.  Lots 4 and 6 are 
developed with single-family homes.  Lot 5 is undeveloped.  The applicant is proposing to split Lot 5 and add the 
land area equally to Lots 4 and 6.  The resulting Lots 1 and 2 within the new “Walnut Street Subdivision” would 
measure 75.10’ wide by 125.5’ deep, or 9,425.05 square feet.  Although the newly created lots would still be 
deficient in lot width, depth and area for an R-2 zoned property, they would be less non-conforming.  
 
 

Attachments 
• Location map, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scale 1:2,000 
• Location map, prepared by staff, (VOF GIS) scale 1:600  
• Existing Plat of Survey – Lot 4 (142 Walnut), prepared by Claassen, White & Associates 
• Existing Plat of Survey – Lots 5 and 6 (150 Walnut), prepared by Exacta Land Surveyors, LLC 



  2 

• Proposed Plat of Survey – Lot 1 of Walnut Street Subdivision, prepared by Claassen, White & Associates 
(150 Walnut) 

• Proposed Plat of Survey – Lot 2 of Walnut Street Subdivision, prepared by Claassen, White & Associates 
(142 Walnut) 

• Tax Assessment Map of properties, Will County GIS 
• Final Plat of Resubdivision for Walnut Street Subdivision, prepared by MG2A 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 

• A sidewalk currently exists along the frontages of all three existing lots.  
 
Affirmative Motion 
 

1. Recommend to the Village Board approve the Plat of Resubdivision for Walnut Street Subdivision, subject 
to any necessary technical revisions prior to recording.    

 



WA
LN

UT
 S

T

S M
AP

LE
 S

T

HI
CK

OR
Y S

T

W NEBRASKA ST

OREGON ST

UTAH ST

OREGON ST

UTAH ST

Lots 4, 5 & 6 of Original Town of Frankfort

µ
0 220 440110

Feet



UTAH ST

WALNUT ST

Lots 4, 5 & 6 of Original Town of Frankfort

µ
0 50 10025

Feet

4

6

5



EXISTING 142 WALNUT (Lot 4)



EXISTING 150 WALNUT (Lot 6)

cgruba
Received





PROPOSED 150 WALNUT (LOT 1 WALNUT STREET SUB)



PROPOSED 142 WALNUT (LOT 2 WALNUT STREET SUB)



-009

-003

-002

-001

-003

-0
02

-013

-008

-007

-004
-003

-023

-024

-005

-004

-003

-002

-001

Pt. -003

-003-002-001

Pt. -001

-023

-022

-021

-019

-017

-016

-015

-014-013-012

-011

-008

-007

-006

-005-004

Pt. -003

-022

-021

-020

-019

-018

-017

-014

-013

-012

-011

-010

-009

-008

-006

-004

-003

-002

-001

-023

-022

-021

-017

-016

-015

-014

-010

-009

-008

-007

-006

-005

-004

-003

-002

-022

-020

-017

-016

-015

-014

-013

-012

-011

-010
-009

-004

-007-013

-012

-011-010

-009

-0
08

-0
07

-0
06

-0
03

-0
01-001-006

-007

-001

-002

-003

-004 -005

-006

-007

-008

-001

-007

-014

-005

-006

-008

-007

-002

-003

-004

-005

-006

-001

-002

-003

-004

-005

-006

-007

-001

-004 -006 -007
-008

-010

-017-020 -021 -022-029

-003 -004 -005
-006

-007

-008

-010
-011

-012 -013

-014

-015

-017

-010

-003

-0
14

-0
16

-0
17

-0
15-001

-004 -005 -007 -008

-008

-001

-013

-010

-012

-001
-006-003

-017
-016

-015

-014
-036-024

-1002
-1003
-1004

-1001
-1002
-1003
-1004

-1001
-1002
-1003
-1004

-1001
-1002
-1003
-1004

-1001
-1002
-1003
-1004

-006

-041 -032 -034
-038-040

Pt. 09-28-100-003

3.52

.50
.54

.21.12

.83

.21

.65

Pt. 8.10

.37

Pt. 11.56

Pt. 8.10

.24

.22

(V
AC

)
OA

K 
ST

PACIFIC ST (VACATED)

OREGON (CALIFORNIA) ST

OREGON ST

KANSAS ST

NEBRASKA ST

OREGON ST

NEBRASKA ST (MINNESOTA)

PACIFIC ST

KANSAS ST

KANSAS ST

KAFFEL CT

MA
PL

E 
ST

HI
CK

OR
Y 

ST

W
AL

NU
T 

ST
 

NEBRASKA ST

MICHIGAN AVE (VAC)(V
AC

)

E. J. & E. R.R.

OLD PLANK (Formerly N.Y.C. RR.)

1

10

12

13

14

15

16

2 33

9

9

8

8

7

7

6

6

4

-024

-010

-009

Pt. -001

SANGMEISTER RD

-008

-009

5-004 -005

-006
-007 -008 -009 -014 -012 -001 -002

-003

-002

-003

-006

-015

-012

-011

-013

-016

-017

-001

-002

-009

-004

-001

-002

-003

-004

-014 -012

-011

Pt. -100-003
Pt. 11.561

-015 -016

-006

-005

-064 -065
-066

-063

UTAH ST

S002966

S003126
S003118S003117S003119

S003116

S003120

S003123

S003026

S003161

S003025

S003328

S009556

S009556

S009801

201

210

216

223

500

225

203202

205

212

218217

211

204

217

211

204

202

228

500

206

213

219

418

224
222

222

1

2
3

1234 1

1

2

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6 7

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

123456789101112

13

14
15

16

7

8

9

10

11

12

1234
5

6789101112

13

14
15

16 13

14

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28 29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42 43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56 57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

123

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

3
4

1

2

3

4

5

6

12

3
4

1

2

3

1

2

3

1

3

4

1 2 32

12

3 4

56

PUBLIC SQUARE

Pt. 3 Pt. 3 Pt. 3

Pt. 3

Pt. 2

1S
2N
2S

82
84
86
88

72
74
76
78

62
64
66
68

52
54
56
58

Com. Area

3 2
1

12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 2 13 6 5 4 1
2

3

4

5

6 7

8

9

12

11

10

1

2

3

4

5

6

3

12 11 10

Pt
. 2

1 2

9

10

1 2 3
4

10
3.

96
10

4.
18

90.7690.7690.7690.76 116.05

33

12
8.

95

129.60

129.60

12
6.

06

15
9.

06

15
9.

06

15
9.

06

66

116.11

3390.80 90.80 90.80 90.64

10
4.

18
10

4.
18

28

60.01

50505030
125 100

69
.3

1

28
20

40

31.21

40

145

141.5

20

60

90

163.58

10
0

113

50

12
1.

82

12
7.

68

69.99

55
.87

47
.12

48.1112.51

47
.9

9

909532

2.65

19
3.

68

404.29 314.21 250

16
5.

22

16
5.

24

16
5.

29

16
5.

29

101 79 79.96 79 131

7368 85 264

54 36 56 57 115

1056045510094

16
5

75
75

69200

47 32

61

149
79.68101 124

113

11
8

16
5

54

65
66

66

125

66

203 61 100 125

90

50
67

98

125

135

11
8

10
7

264 264

264 264

634

20
0

20
7.

8
20

0

72.5

49.5 49.549.5

66
66

66

99

50 10
16

99

65 67.5

16
5 50

50
50

132.5

50
50

50

132.50

132.5

50
50

50
50

50
50

11
5

132.5

148.5

75
65

13
5

12
5

99
11

5.
30

148.566

148.57

92

16

66

6575 100

15
0

13
6.

5

13
2.

03

60.02

13
2.

23

132

32
.0

1

134.15

13
2.

08

13
2.

35
48

.5
3 111.17

66
66

50
66

50
66

66

16
66

50
66

323886

16
50

66

66

60

50

66

445816

66

12416

66

52 73.50

125.5 60 60

66 66

66

60

25
50

50
50

50

65.62

50
50

50
50

120

50
50

50
50

50

50
50

50
50

50

6262

25
50

1612416 124

50 50

50
50

25

124

38

6262

58.35125.50

50

70

47
58

50

124

124

50
50

35
25

50
50

124

50
50

50
50

50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50

16124125.50

125125.5

50
30

50
50

50

30
0

50
20

264

264

30
0

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
30

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
55

61
.3

55
50

50
50

25
50

50
50

25
50

50
38

50
61

.5

50
20

12
25

25

14125 12560
125.5

61
.8

61 61 60
.8

60

12514

25
50

50
50

50
50

50
25

25
50

50
55

60
.7

55
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
25

50
50 50

25

25

2

25
25

125 12514

60
.5

60
.5

125 14 125

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
55

60
.2

0

50
50

50
50

50
50

32
75

75
75

10
0

50

58
12

5
93

.4
0

16
7

9060731772.5079.17 54.50751126078.99

18
5

18
5

55
55

50
.4

5

38.95
165.5510

44
.1

0
37

11260

33
1.

66

12
5

12
5

16
0

32
5.

81
16

5.
81

10
1.

40

62
.1

8

60

59.89

150
150

150

18

22 22 22 22 22 22222222 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22

80.87

2323

2727

10.
.14

11.
.86

11
.

.5
0

4.5

16
0

1535 2525

25

15
25

18
6.

60
15

15

12
5

72.50

79.17 162.50

4

4120
124

54.50 60
90

55

78.991006575

73

60

3911

61.83

61.83

10
0

10
0

61.83

30.91

30.91 30.91

30.91 22 22 22 22 22

2222222222

16

16

6

6

22

22

22 22

22 22

22 22

2222

9

9

13

13

60

60

18

18

4

4 19 3

3

55
.5

0

9

9

22

22

22

22

22 22

22

12

2
4747

33

4848
50

2
25

25
50

505050

50
50

50
50

5050
42 42

8 8

50 50

8

16

8

8

8

8 16

5050
50

50
50 50

50
25

25

53
.4

1

12.29
31.42

203

16
5

61 39

39

100

125

125

67
98

88
50

125

16
5

90

16
5

16
5

16
5

11

16
5

16
5(

R
) 1

65
.0

1(
M

)

22 822 22

16

22 22 22 8

85.01

85.01

65

65

16
5.

01

20

110.50

19
.

.1
0

38.71

38.71

31.75

31.75

40.04

40.04

65
.5

0

9965
.5

0

65
.5

0

148(R) 148.50(M)

99

S003025
Original Town of Frankfort
2-45
S003161
Mc Donald's Sub
10-43

Tax Assessment Map
Revised for the 2021 Assessment

Copyrighted 2021 by Will County GIS Division

Jennifer Bertino-Tarrant
County Executive Map PageWill County, Illinois

Subdivision List

Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data
Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic Information System has been produced and
processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, adequacy,
completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and aggregate uses of
the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, express
or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be
periodically made to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication.
If you have obtained information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that
electronic data can be altered subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended
that careful attention be paid to the contents of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with
any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any questions to Mapping & Platting at (815) 740-4664.

09-28B-C
Frankfort Township
E.1/3 W.2/3 N.E.1/4 Sec.28 T.35N. R.12E.

1 inch = 200 feet
Plot Date: Jul 08 2021

  
09

-2
8B

-W

09-28B-E

 09-28D-W

09-28D
-E

09-21D-E

Rhonda R. Novak
Supervisor of Assessments

cgruba
Rectangle



cgruba
Received



1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                           May 26, 2022 

 
Project: Gale Residence – House Addition 
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing 
Request(s): Request for a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 1 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning 

Ordinance to permit an addition to the primary structure (house) located 17’ 3” from the 
rear property line whereas 30’ is required.  

Location: 19948 Lily Court 
Applicant:  Patrick Gale 
Prop. Owner:  Same  
Report By:  Christopher Gruba, Senior Planner 
 

Site Details 
Lot Size: 0.38 Acres / 16,585 sq. ft.                                                                   Figure 1: Location Map    
PIN:  19-09-15-205-019-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2 
Prop.  Zoning: N/A   
Gross Living Area: 2,901 S.F. (not including garage or patio) 
Building footprint: 3,776 S.F. (including garage and patio) 
Lot Coverage: 22.8% 
Impervious Coverage: 35.8% +/- 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Single-family Residential    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

North  Single-family Residential 
 

Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

South Single-family Residential     Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

East Single-family Residential    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

West Open Space (pond)    Single-Family 
Detached Residential 

R-2 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Patrick Gale, is seeking to construct an addition to the rear of his house for an unenclosed, roofed 
patio area.  The proposed unenclosed roof would project 14 feet beyond the westernmost rear wall of the house 
and would measure 17’ 10” feet wide by 14 feet deep, or 250 square feet.  The proposed rear yard building 
addition would be located 17’ 3” from the rear property line, whereas 30’ is required in the R-2 zone district, 
requiring a variance.  

The applicant had formerly requested a variance for this project this year for a 14’ 3” setback instead of the 
current 17’ 3” setback.  A public hearing for the former request was held on March 24, 2022, in which the Plan 
Commission unanimously recommended denial (5-0).  At the Village Board meeting on April 4, 2022, the Board 
voted 3-3 on the variance request, resulting in a denial (4 affirmative votes from the trustees were needed).  The 
applicant is now seeking a smaller addition and increased rear yard setback, along with additional supplemental 
information.  Variances may be reapplied for if different than the original request, there is no time limit.   

 



2 

Attachments 

• Location map, prepared by staff (GIS) 
• Property Survey, performed by Exacta, dated 4.22.16 
• Permit drawings, materials list and pictures, submitted by applicant, April 15, 2022 
• Variance findings of fact, provided by applicant 
• HOA approval letter from La Porte Meadows Community Architectural Committee 

 

Analysis 
 

In consideration of the requests, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 

• The existing house currently complies with the required front, side and rear yard setbacks for the R-2 zone 
district. The existing house is set back 30’ from the front property line, which is the minimum setback for a 
house in this zone district.  The existing house is currently set back approximately 30’ from the rear property 
line at the closest point, which is the minimum setback permitted in this zone district.  

• The maximum lot coverage for a one-story house in the R-2 zone district is 25%.  The existing lot coverage 
is 3,776 square feet, or 22.8%.  The open porch addition will increase the lot coverage to 4,026 square feet, 
or 24.3%, complying with this requirement.  

• The existing impervious lot coverage, which includes the house, driveway, sidewalk and existing rear 
covered porch is approximately 35.8%, whereas a maximum of 40% is permitted.  The addition would 
increase the impervious coverage to approximately 37.3%, still under the permitted amount.  

• An arced conservation area & public utility easement exists in the rear yard of the property, adjacent to the 
existing detention pond.  No accessory structures may be constructed within this area (although fences are 
permitted at the applicant’s risk).  The proposed building addition would be located just outside of this 
easement.  The easement boundary loosely follows the existing faux wrought-iron fence, although the fence 
is mostly located within the conservation & public utility easement.  

• There is an existing rear yard covered porch area measuring 8’ deep by 17’ 10” wide, or 143 square feet.  
The proposed addition would further extend the covered area by 14’ (an area 14’ deep and 17’ 10” wide, 
or 250 square feet).   

• The maximum size of a detached, unenclosed accessory structure such as a pool cabana, pergola or gazebo 
is 250 square feet (the same size that the applicant is proposing to add to the house).  

• The proposed addition would match the existing home in terms of materials (shingled roof) and roof pitch.  
• A detention pond exists beyond the rear yard.  The closest house to the applicant’s house, measured from 

back of house to back of house, is approximately 222’.  The proposed building addition would decrease this 
amount to approximately 208’.   

• The applicant has provided a letter of approval from the LaPorte Meadows homeowners association.  

 
Standards of Variation  

 
The applicant is requesting a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 1 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance 
to permit the construction of an addition that is set back less than 30’ from the rear property line.  The applicant has 
provided responses to these ten (10) findings of fact in the attached documents.  
 
For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request.  
 

a. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not vary the provisions of this Ordinance as authorized in this Article 3, 
Section B, unless they have made findings based upon the evidence presented to it in the following cases:  

 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 

conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  
 



3 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances;  
 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 

b. For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals, in making this 
determination, whenever there are practical difficulties or particular hardships, shall also take into 
consideration the extent to which the following facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by 
the evidence:  

 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 

involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, 
if the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

 
2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, generally, 

to other property within the same zoning classification;  
 

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 
the property;  
 

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an 
interest in the property;  
 

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  
 

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood;  
 

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, 
substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially 
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.  

 
Affirmative Motion    

Future public hearing motion:   

1. Recommend the Village Board approve a variation from Article 6, Section B, Part 1 of the Village of Frankfort 
Zoning Ordinance to permit the construction of a rear yard addition set back 17’ 3” from the rear property 
line, whereas 30’ is required in the R-2 zone district, for the property located at 19948 Lily Court in 
accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 

 

     



S 8
8T

H 
AV

E

LIL
Y C

T

WI
LD

FL
OW

ER
 D

R
LIATRIS DR

19948 Lily Court

µ
0 150 30075

Feet







cgruba
Received





























 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Standards of Variation 

 
Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request. The Zoning Board of Appeals 
must answer the following three findings favorable to the applicant based upon the evidence provided. 
To assist the Zoning Board of Appeals in their review of the variation request(s), please provide responses 
to the following “Standards of Variation.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under 

the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances; and  
 
 
 
 
 
3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 
  
 
 
 
For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals also determines if 
the following seven facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by the evidence. Please 
provide responses to the following additional “Standards of Variation.”  
 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 

involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

 
 
 
 
 

The pond, adjacent to the rear property line, increases the upfront cost/value of the 
home, yet cannot be reasonably returned due to the extreme exposure of the sun on 
the rear side (west-facing) of the property during the summer months. The unique 
circumstances (beyond facing west), are detailed in the remaining questions below.

Given the rear property line is adjacent to a pond, there are no homes, nor trees to 
provide any shade whatsoever. Additionally, the sun's reflection off the pond, adds 
further heat/glaring rays to our property. The rear property line is 120' from the rear 
neighbor's property line, which would make the proposed structure 138' from rear 
neighbor's property line.

The variation, if granted, enables us to maintain the essential character of the locality, 
AND fully resolve the hardship. Without a variation, standard regulations allow for a 
free standing gazebo with identical square footage (249.67), closer to my fence; yet, 
would be more visible, covers more of my current yard, and only partially resolves the 
hardship. "Attachment A, page 5" compares both options on the Plat of Survey.

As described in question #1 above and #2 below, the heat in the rear of the property 
is extreme, and distinguished from a mere inconvenience due to the physical 
surroundings (no homes, nor tall trees), shape of the property (first lot when entering 
cul-de-sac, which positions the home closer to the rear property line), and 
topographical conditions (pond adjacent to rear property line).



2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;  

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 

the property;  
 
 
 
 
 
4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an 

interest in the property;  
 
 
 
 
 
5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to 

other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  
 
 
 
 
 
6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood; or  

 
 
 
 
 
7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, 

substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially 
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.  

 

 

 

 

Per "Attachments A, page 6" the property's lot location is uniquely positioned; it is the 
first home on an "off-centered" cul-de-sac, which positions the home closer to the rear 
property line. Furthermore, the property's rear property line is 120' from the rear 
neighbor's property line due to the pond.

The purpose of the variation is based on hardship upon the owner, not money. 

The hardship has not been created by any person presently having an interest in the 
property.

Per "Attachment B," the currently proposed plan (requiring this variation), has been 
approved by the La Porte Meadows Home Owners Association (HOA), and neighbors 
notified. The variation will not cause damage, harm, or any other negative impact to 
the public welfare and neighborhood.

As referenced in "Attachment A" & Question #3 on pg 1 above, the proposed plan (i.e. 
same hip roof pitch & design) was developed to ensure that there is no variance 
whatsoever, with the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the current 
structure (home), immediate neighborhood, and character of the applicable district.  

As referenced in both question #2s above, the property's rear property line is 120' 
from the rear neighbor's property line. Furthermore, if granted the variation, the 
extended roof will not be visible from the current, adjacent side properties' structures 
(homes). The proposed variation will not impair adequate supply of air to adjacent 
properties, substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public 
safety nor substantially diminish nor impair property values within the neighborhood.





1 
 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                                                                                   S                                May 26, 2022 

Project: Pic & Plā – Pickleball Courts Building   
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing   
Requests: Special Use for Indoor Recreation  
Location:   9093 W. Fey Drive  
Applicant:  Anthony Villa  
Prop. Owner:  Laraway Investments, LLC  
Representative: Anthony Villa 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 55,757 sq. ft. (1.28 acres)                                    Figure 1. Location Map     
PIN(s): 19-09-34-202-001-0000 
Existing Zoning:  I-1   
Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Future Land Use:  Business Park 
Buildings: 1   
Total Sq. Ft.: 12,160 sq. ft. (bldg.) 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant is proposing to construct a 12,160 square foot building containing four (4) pickleball courts on Lot 13 
of the East Point Park industrial subdivision.  The proposal would require a special use permit for indoor recreation.  
As currently proposed, the project will not require any variances (setbacks, lot coverage, building height, etc.).  The 
business would be open daily from 7 am – 9 pm; normal business hours within the Village are 7 am – 11 pm.  
Reservations to play would be made via a mobile app.  The plans formerly included three (3) outdoor pickleball 
courts, which were removed as recommended during the workshop on April 28th, 2022.  The outdoor courts use 
would have required a second special use permit to allow for outdoor recreation on lots larger than 1 acre.  
 
Attachments 

1. Aerial images (1:6,000 scale and 1:2,500 scale) VOF GIS 
2. Alta Land Title Survey 
3. Description of use – prepared by applicant 
4. Special Use Permit Findings of Fact, applicant responses 
5. Site Plan, dated 5.13.22 
6. Landscape Plan, dated 4.18.22  
7. Photometric Plan, dated 5.17.22 (and details of lights, provided by staff) 
8. Building Elevations, dated 4.14.22 
9. Floorplan, dated 4.12.22  
10. Detail of trash enclosure, dated 5.17.22 
11. Photographs of neighboring building and other buildings within the East Point Park subdivision taken 4.21.22 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property Undeveloped Business Park I-1 

North    Undeveloped Business Park I-1 

South     Undeveloped Business Park I-1 

East Light 
Manufacturing 

Business Park I-1 

West    Undeveloped Business Park I-1 



2 
 

 
Analysis 
 

Zoning 
 

1. The subject property is currently zoned I-1, Limited Industrial, within the East Point Park subdivision.  
Indoor recreation facilities require a special use permit in the I-1 zone district.  Currently, there is another 
indoor (and outdoor) recreation facility within this subdivision for Roma Sports Club.   

Site Design 
 

1. No fences or retaining walls are proposed.  The former outdoor courts have been removed, although 
there was no fencing proposed around the courts during the workshop.  
 

2. The project does not contain any accessory structures, other than a trash enclosure.  During the 
workshop, the enclosure was located in the far southeast corner of the lot but was recoated to the side 
yard.  Trash enclosures are considered accessory structures and may only be located in the side or rear 
yard and set back at least 10’ from any property line.  The enclosure is located approximately 60’ from the 
front property line and 15.24’ from the side property line, complying with the code.  A detail has been 
provided of the proposed trash enclosure.  This detail notes that the enclosure will have vinyl gates.  It 
should be noted that the vinyl shall not be in the form of vinyl slats over a chain-link fence, as chain link 
fencing is not permitted for enclosures.  This has been added as a condition of approval.    
 

3. The applicant has informed staff that there will not be any air-conditioning for the building and therefore 
no exterior mechanical units will be needed.  Should air-conditioning units or any other mechanical units 
be installed outside of the building in the future, they must be screened with landscaping or walls per 
Article 7, Section A, Part 3 (c) of the Zoning Ordinance.  This has been included as a condition of approval.  
 

4. The workshop site plan included a 10’ wide drive aisle along the east side of the building, allowing for cars 
or smaller trucks to drive around the site.  Although not a recommendation during the workshop, this 
drive aisle has since been removed.   
 

Dimensional Table 

   Required Proposed/Existing 
Minimum Lot Size 1 acre 1.28 acres 
Minimum Lot Width 100’ 150’ + 
Front Setback 50’  50’  
Landscaped front yard 20’  25.34’ 
Side Setback (west) 20’  44.46’ 
Side Setback (east) 20’  20.5’ 
Rear Setback  30’  65’ 
Building Height 35’  23’ 4” 
Lot Coverage No Max 21.8% 
Impervious Lot Coverage 80% 55.7% 

 
Parking & Loading 
 

1. Indoor recreation facilities require “1 parking space for every 4 patrons based upon the maximum 
occupancy of the facility, plus 1 parking space for each employee during the largest working shift”.  In an 
email from the applicant on April 13th, 2022, it was noted that the building is designed for a maximum 



3 
 

occupancy of 50, however, the description of the use submitted by the applicant notes that the total 
capacity will be 25.  The applicant also noted that there may be up to 2 employees during the largest 
working shift.  Using the higher occupancy of 50 persons, the indoor use would require a total of 15 
parking spaces. The site plan illustrates a total of 28 parking spaces, including the required 2 ADA-
accessible spaces, meeting this requirement.  

 
2. The applicant noted that if all four indoor courts are being used at once, there may be up to 16 people 

playing at any one time.  Other people may arrive early to wait to play.   
 

3. The Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum drive aisle width of 24’ when serving two rows of parking.  The 
drive aisles within the parking lot are 24’ & 25’ wide, meeting this requirement.   
 

4. All parking spaces measure 9’ x 18.5’, meeting the minimum code requirement of 9’ x 18’.   
 

5. The Zoning Ordinance requires at least 1 loading space, measuring 12’ x 50’.  A loading space with these 
dimensions has been striped within the paved area behind the building, meeting this requirement.  
 

6. Concrete curbs are required for all paved areas and have been provided.  
 

Architectural Style and Building Materials 

1. The Zoning Ordinance lists regulations for new construction within the I-1 zone district:  
 
a) Exterior walls shall be of face brick, architectural steel and aluminum, stone, glass, exposed aggregate 

panels, textured or architecturally finished concrete, steel, or wood. Equivalent or better materials, or 
any combination of the above, may be used in a well-conceived or creative application. 
 

b) Common brick and concrete block are prohibited as exterior building materials. 
 

c) Split face block is only permitted on front and side facades where architectural features (such as 
columns, horizontal bands, etc.) are incorporated into said façades. 

 
d) Corrugated metal or pre-engineered metals installed with exposed fasteners are only permitted on 

front facades if 50% of said front façade is masonry, and are only permitted on side facades where 
architectural features (such as columns, horizontal bands, etc.) are incorporated into said side 
façades. 

 
The proposed building would be primarily constructed of split face CMU block and painted metal siding 
with a standing seam metal roof.  Accent features include scored CMU block at the building corners and 
sides, an awning on the north (front) façade and frosted glass transom windows on the front and rear 
façades.  The front façade contains at least 50% masonry, as required per (d) above.  Although it is not 
required per code, the east side elevation is also 50% masonry, which will be most visible upon approach 
to the site.  Typically, color building elevations or renderings are provided to the Plan Commission to 
evaluate the building aesthetics.  The applicant has not submitted any color renderings, material boards 
or paint swatches, although they may be requested by the Plan Commission.  
 
There are four (4) other existing buildings in the East Point Park subdivision.  The adjacent building to the 
east for HB Fuller is primarily constructed of split face CMU block and corrugated metal.  The other 
buildings for Roma Sports Club, Architectural Grilles & Sunshades, Inc. and Southwest Town Mechanical 



4 
 

(HVAC) include construction materials such as split face CMU block, corrugated metal, brick and 
decorative window louvers.  Photographs of these buildings have been included with the staff report.  
 

Stormwater & Drainage 
 

1. Robinson Engineering has performed a cursory review and has indicated that the subdivision has been 
pre-engineered for drainage.  There are existing storm sewers that collect water from Lots 9-17 and drain 
into the existing detention pond immediately northwest of the site.  Final engineering approval will be 
required prior to the release of building permits and this has been added as a condition of approval of the 
special use permit.  
 

2. There are no wetlands or floodplains on the subject property.  
 
Landscaping 

Like many of the undeveloped lots within the East Point Park subdivision, the site is treeless, and a tree survey was 
not required.  The workshop landscape plan complied with the Village’s Landscape Ordinance.  However, due to 
the changes in site design, including the removal of the sports courts, the east drive aisle and the parking lot, a 
revised landscape plan will be required and has been added as a condition of approval.   

The Landscape Ordinance requirements are as follows:  

1. Parkway Trees (Street Trees): The Landscape Ordinance requires one 2.5” caliper overstory tree for every 
35 lineal feet of road frontage (not including driveways).  The road frontage along W. Fey Drive is 
approximately 300 feet, requiring 9 overstory trees.   

2. Parking Lot Landscaping: Landscaping is required to screen the parking spaces from view as well as 
provide landscaping within parking lot islands and fingers.   

 
Lighting 
 

1. The site will be illuminated with building-mounted wall pack lights.  There will be no freestanding light 
poles.  The Zoning Ordinance notes that light levels shall not exceed 0.5 foot-candles along any property 
line.  A photometric plan was submitted on May 17, 2022, which complies with the code.  
 

2. The photometric plan lists the part number (light type) for the building-mounted lights.  Staff has included 
an image of this wall pack light.  

 
Other 

 
1. There will be no bleacher-type seating provided within the building.  

 
2. There will be no indoor food concessions inside the building.   

 
3. The Fire District has reviewed the proposed site plan and does not have any additional comments at this 

time.  A fire truck does not need to be able to circumnavigate the property.   
 

4. Basements are not required for this type of development per the Zoning Ordinance or the Building Code.  
 
 
 
 



5 
 

Special Use Request 
 
The following findings of fact are used to judge the merit of a special use permit request.  The applicant has 
provided responses to these findings of fact in a separate attachment.    
 
Findings of Fact: 
 
No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find: 
 
a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.   
 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
neighborhood.   
 
c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 
d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance 
with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a 
substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.   
 
e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being provided.   
 
f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize 
traffic congestion in the public streets.   
 
g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is 
located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission.   
 
Affirmative Motions  
 

1. Recommend to the Village Board to approve the special use permit for an indoor recreation facility, in 
accordance with the reviewed plans, findings of fact, and public testimony, conditioned on the submittal 
of a revised landscape plan, that any future mechanical units shall be screened from view, that the trash 
enclosure gate shall be vinyl and opaque (not chain link) and obtaining final engineering approval. 
 
 

 



S P
FE

IFF
ER

 R
D

W LARAWAY RD

W FEY DR

GULFSTREAM RD

S F
EY

 D
R W ROMA CT

S M
US

TA
NG

 R
D

S C
ITA

TIO
N 

RD

S C
HA

LL
EN

GE
R 

RD

INDUSTRY AVE

S COMMERCE PKWY

W CORSAIR RD

PINE RIDGE DR

9093 W. Fey Drive - Proposed Pickleball Bldg.

µ

0 500 1,000250
Feet



W LARAWAY RD

W FEY DR

S F
EY

 D
R

W ROMA CT

S C
OM

ME
RC

E 
PK

WY

9093 W. Fey Drive - Proposed Pickleball Bldg.

µ

0 250 500125
Feet























RECEIVED 5.17.22



ADJACENT BUILDING, HB FULLER - 9001 W. FEY (LOTS 9-12)

ADJACENT BUILDING, HB FULLER - 9001 W. FEY (LOTS 9-12)



SOUTHWEST TOWN MECHANICAL - 22349 S. COMMERCE PARKWAY (LOTS 4 & 5)

ROMA SPORTS CLUB - 9091 W. ROMA (LOTS 19-25)



ROMA SPORTS CLUB - 9091 W. ROMA (LOTS 19-25)

ARCHITECTURAL GRILLES & SHADES, 22442 W. FEY (LOTS 26-28)



ARCHITECTURAL GRILLES & SHADES, 22442 W. FEY (LOTS 26-28)



cgruba
Received



cgruba
Received







 

0

Illumination results shown on this lighting design
are based on project parameters provided to
Cree Lighting used inconjunction with luminaire
test procedures conducted under laboratory
conditions.  Actual project conditions differing
from these design parameters may affect field
results. The customer is responsible for
verifying dimensional accuracy along with
compliance with any applicable electrical,
lighting,or energy code.9201 Washington Ave, Racine, WI 53406  https://creelighting.com - (800) 236-6800

CREE GHTINGLI_______________________
A COMPANY OF IDEAL INDUSTRIES, INC. Footcandles calculated at grade Filename: 220517JD1CIS.AGI

Scale 1" = 20'

40 80

Project Name: Lot 13 E Point Park, 9093 W Fay Dr, Frankfort, IL
CASE #: 00497025

Layout By:
Chris Schlitz

Date:5/17/2022

*** CUSTOMER TO VERIFY ORDERING INFORMATION AND
CATALOGUE NUMBER PRIOR TO PLACING ORDER ***

WP
MH: 16WP

MH: 16

WP
MH: 16MH: 16

WP

WP
MH: 16

MH: 16
WP

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.5 2.1 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.2 1.6 1.0 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.3 0.6 1.2 2.5 4.8 6.5 4.3 2.5 1.8 2.2 3.7 6.2 5.5 3.0 1.4 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 0.8 1.1 1.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 1.1 2.2 3.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 1.4 3.4 6.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 1.6 4.2 8.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 1.7 4.2 7.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 1.7 4.2 7.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 1.5 3.8 8.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.5 1.3 2.7 4.4 0.3 0.6 1.2 2.6 5.8 8.4 4.9 2.5 1.9 2.2 4.1 7.9 6.9 3.2 1.5 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.4 1.0 1.5 2.1 0.3 0.6 1.1 2.4 4.3 5.5 3.9 2.3 1.7 2.1 3.4 5.3 4.8 2.8 1.4 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.6 0.8 1.1 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.3 1.7 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.8 1.4 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.5

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Arrangement LMF Lum. Lumens Lum. Watts Part Number

6 WP 1.000 9000 62 C-WP-A-FCA-09-40K-DBSingle

Calculation Summary (Footcandles calculated using initial lumen values @ 25°C)

Label Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

CalcPts Fc 0.52 8.7 0.0 N.A. N.A.

PROPERTY LINE Fc 0.04 0.2 0.0 N.A. N.A.

cgruba
Received



cgruba
Received



cgruba
Received



  1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA May 26, 2022 

 
 
Project: Chase Bank – Rooftop Solar Panels 
Meeting Type:  Workshop 
Request: Variation 
Location:   20801 S. La Grange  
Applicant:  Breanne Mocaby, Black & Veatch for Pieper Electric 
Prop. Owner: JP Morgan Chase Co. 
Representative: Applicant  
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 1.72 acres (74,923 square feet)                          Figure 1. Location Map 
PIN: 19-09-22-101-027-0000 
Proposed Zoning:  N/A 
Existing Zoning:  B-2, Community Business  
Buildings: 1 building 
Building area: 4,364 square feet 
Drive-thru canopy:  2,050 square feet (approximately) 
Lot Coverage:  8.6% (approximately) 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property Bank Gen. Commercial B-2 

North Undeveloped Gen. Commercial B-4 

South  Commercial Gen. Commercial B-2 

East Office Gen. Commercial B-2 

West (County*) Public School Public 
Institutional 

R-2* 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant is proposing to install rooftop solar panels on top of the existing Chase Bank building.  The proposed 
rooftop solar panels would be located on all four sides of the pitched roof, including on top of the pitched roof 
over the drive-through. Historically, the Village has classified non-residential rooftop solar panels as “mechanical 
equipment”, which must be screened from view from public rights-of-way, adjoining properties and adjacent 
residential structures.  The most typical form of screening rooftop equipment is by using parapet walls, commonly 
installed on flat-roof buildings.  Since the roof is pitched, the applicant is electing to apply for variations to allow 
for unscreened rooftop equipment.  The applicant is seeking relief from two sections of the Zoning Ordinance: 
Article 7, Section A, Part 2 (c) and Article 7, Section A, Part 10.  

 
Attachments 

• Location Map, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scale 1:4,000  
• Location Map, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scale 1:1,000  
• Plat of Survey, prepared by W-T Land Surveying, Inc.  
• Proposal Summary Information (Narrative), prepared by applicant, dated May 10, 2022 
• Photographic simulation provided by applicant, received 5.5.22 



  2 

• Construction drawings, provided by applicant, received 5.5.22 
• Variation findings of fact responses, prepared by applicant 
• Photographs of the site, taken by staff 5.13.22 
• Google street view images, September, November and December 2021 

 
Analysis 
 

• Per the strict interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance, the rooftop solar panels must be screened from 
view from all adjacent properties and rights-of-way (all four directions).  

• The site is bordered by mature trees along both road frontages and most of the northern property line.  

• The installation of parapet walls on a building with a sloped roof would not sufficiently screen the rooftop 
solar panels, unless the parapet walls were raised to the height of the peak of the roof.  

• Screening, including parapet wall screening, may block sunrays from reaching the rooftop solar panels.  

• Rooftop solar panels are exempt from screening on residential structures under 30’ tall, per the 
Homeowner’s Solar Rights Act (Public Act 096-1436).  

 
Variation Findings of Fact 
 
Since there are two separate sections of the Zoning Ordinance that address rooftop equipment screening, the 
request technically involves two separate variation requests.  The applicant has provided responses to the below 
findings of fact for variations.  
 
A variance may only be issued when the standards of variation are met.   

 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable rate of return if permitted to be used 

only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone.  
2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.    
3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

 
For the purposes of evaluating the above standards, the following shall be considered by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals:  

 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific 
property involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;  

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out 
of the property;  

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an 
interest in the property;  

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly 
injurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  



  3 

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be 
so at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures 
already constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the 
character of the applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values 
within the neighborhood;  

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, 
substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially 
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.  

 
 
 
 



S L
A 

GR
AN

GE
 R

D

ABBEY DR

E COLORADO AVE
W COLORADO AVE

LINCOLNWAY
LN

MARKET ST

ABBOT CT

FOX RUN CT

N 
BA

NK
VIE

W
 D

R

VAIL D R

W BANKVIEW DR

ASHLEY CT

CA
RD

IN
AL

 C
T

AB
BE

Y W
OODS CT N

PUEB LO CT

HUNT CLUB DR

BOULDER CT

FR
AN

CI
SC

A 
WA

Y

FOX RUN CIR

µ

20801 S. La Grange - Chase Bank

0 250 500125
Feet



E COLORADO AVE

S L
A 

GR
AN

GE
 R

D

W COLORADO AVE

µ
20801 S. La Grange - Chase Bank

0 100 20050
Feet



cgruba
Received



 

 
 
I. PROPOSAL SUMMARY INFORMATION 
 
 
DATE:     May 10, 2022 
      
 
APPLICANT:     

Breanne Mocaby with Black & Veatch  
     19801 SW 72nd Ave Suite 200 
     Tualatin, OR 97062 
 
     Telephone: 503-443-4462 
     Email:  MocabyB@bv.com 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:   JP Morgan Chase  
 
REQUEST: Variance to Article 7, Section A, Part 3 C.7 and Article 7, 

Section A Part 10 to add solar panels and associated 
equipment. 

 
PARCEL NUMBER:   19-09-22-101-027-0000 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 1 IN BANKONE FRANKFORT SUB, A RESUB OF LOT 

1 (EX THAT PRT THROF CONVEYED TO IDOT PER R90-
051268); AND ALL OF LOT 2 IN COURTYARD SUB UNIT 
1, BEING A SUB OF PRT OF THE NW1/4 OF SEC 22, 
T35N-R12E. 

    
LOCATION: 20801 S La Grange Rd Frankfort, IL 60423 
 
ZONING: B2 Community Business District 
 
     
 
 
  

cgruba
Received



| Page 2 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
 
 
JP Morgan Chase is requesting approval to obtain the applicable permits required to install, 
maintain, and operate (168) Mission Solar Modules on West, East, North and South planes 
of the pitched asphalt shingle roof. The solar installation will also include (1) Utility 
Disconnect Switch, (1) combiner panel, (1) Metering and Surge protection cabinet, (1) 
inverter fused disconnect switch and (2) inverter mounted on the wall of the Northwest side 
of the building. The new transformer for the installation will be ground mounted directly in 
front of this equipment 
 
Surrounding Area- The proposed rooftop solar installation will be located on an existing 
bank roof-top. There are no buildings proposed with this solar installation. The parcel is 
located on the corner of S. La Grange Road and Colorado Ave. The parcel is zoned for B2 
Community Business District The other B2 zoned parcels currently have an office building 
(east) and large-scale commercial complex (south). The parcel is neighbored to the north 
by B4 office district which is current vacant land and the parcel across South La Grange 
Road seems to be a High School, but is not within the city limits of Frankfort. 

 
 
Materials & Colors- The proposed installation has been designed to blend with the design 
aesthetic of the existing commercial bank building. The solar panels will be flush mounted to 
the roof and will not exceed the overall height of the building. The proposed solar panels are 
black with light gray racking. The solar panels have an anti-reflective coating to reduce glare. 



| Page 3 

The accessory equipment will be placed near existing side mounted building equipment 
away from the right of way, painted to match the existing brick and buffered by existing 
landscaping.  
Example photos from similar installations: 

 

 
Photo Simulations of the installation are attached to this application. 
 
III. APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
The following sections of Zoning Ordinances are applicable to this application: 
 
Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance:  
 
Article 7, Section A, Part 3, c  



| Page 4 

c. Service/Utility Areas: All service and utility areas which include, but are not 
limited to, loading docks, exterior storage areas, dumpsters and mechanical 
equipment such as plumbing vent stacks, HVAC transformers, fans and cooling 
towers, shall be screened from view by:  
1. Locating all service/utility areas away from public rights of way and concealing 
them from building entrances, pedestrian areas and adjacent residential 
structures.  
Accessory equipment to the solar panels will be located on the NE corner of the 
building away from public rights of way and with other similar building utility 
equipment.  
 
2. Providing for joint use of service areas by multiple adjoining buildings. 
Not applicable to this application 
  
3. Incorporating trash enclosures into building design.  
Not applicable to this application 
 
4. Screening utility service areas from public view with building 
elements/materials similar in appearance to the main structure.  
Accessory equipment to the solar panels (except the invertor) will be painted to 
blend in with the color of the brick exterior.  
 
5. Providing below ground utility connections for all new developments.  
Not applicable to this application 
 
6. Locating mechanical equipment such as air conditioners/exchangers out of 
view from public rights of way and circulation paths, and away from residential 
living or sleeping areas.  
Not applicable to this application 
 
7. Screening rooftop mechanical equipment from view from adjoining properties 
by building elements such as parapet walls. 
The village of Frankfort does not have code that directly addresses roof-top solar 
installations. For this application solar panels are being considered mechanical 
equipment. However, solar panels are aesthetically dissimilar to referenced rooftop 
mechanical equipment such as cooling towers and HVAC transformers, they are low 
profile and will be installed flush with the slope of the roof with anti-glare coating 
and muted colors. Solar panel functionality is also location specific, the square 
footage covered is proportional to power generated. Solar panels cannot be 
consolidated in a small area and fully screened as is common with other mechanical 
equipment. Installation of parapet walls is not structurally possible, would severely 
limit solar panel functionality due to shading and would create an unusual 



| Page 5 

architectural appearance. It is not possible to fully screen solar panels on a sloped 
roof from adjoining properties. 
 
8. Permanent or temporary exterior storage or display of inventory, business 
vehicles or personal vehicles is prohibited without the issuance of a permit. 
Not applicable to this application 

 
9. Providing landscape screening in accordance with the Village of Frankfort 
Landscape Regulations. 
Not applicable to this application 

 
Article 7, Section A, Part 10 Screening 
 
 

a. Screening of service yards, utility meters and hardware, mechanical equipment, 
refuse areas, and/or other potentially unattractive places from public view, shall 
be accomplished by the use of walls, fencing, planting or combinations of all of 
the measures that follow.  Screening shall be equally effective in the winter and 
the summer seasons.  

  
1. Adjusting the architectural or landscape profile to screen those elements from 
view;  

  
2. Placing those elements on service courts or other locations not usable by the 
general public; or  

  
3. Integrating those elements into the architecture or landscaping of the site.  
 

The village of Frankfort does not have code that directly addresses roof-top solar 
installations. For this application solar panels are being considered mechanical equipment. 
However, solar panels are aesthetically dissimilar to referenced mechanical equipment 
such as cooling towers and HVAC transformers. Solar panels are low profile and will be 
installed flush with the slope of the roof with anti-glare coating and muted colors. Solar 
panel functionality is also location specific, the square footage covered is proportional to 
power generated. Solar panels cannot be consolidated in a small area moved to the ground 
and fully screened with walls or fences as is common with other mechanical equipment.   
The solar panel accessory equipment will be located on the northeast corner of the 
building away from view from the Colorado Ave and 280 feet away from La Grange Road. It 
will be placed alongside similar existing building mechanical equipment. It will be painted 
to match the brick of the building (except the inverter which cannot be painted for safety 
reasons) and screened by either existing or replacement landscaping. The solar accessory 
equipment will be screened similarly to existing equipment. 



| Page 6 

 
  

b. The degree of visibility and screening of service yards, utility meters and 
hardware, mechanical equipment, refuse areas and/or potentially unattractive 
places shall be evaluated using the following criteria:  

  
1. The degree of visibility from all adjacent pubic ways;  

  
2. The architectural compatibility of the design and color of the yards, meters and  
equipment of the building;  

  
3. Possible visibility from future buildings and public ways; and  

  
4. Internal overall appearance in relation to the site. 
 

The roof-top solar panels are visible from the adjacent public ways but because they are 
flush mounted and in a muted color, they are architecturally compatible with the design of 
the building. It is not possible to fully screen solar panels on a sloped roof from adjacent 
properties.  
 
Article 3, Section B, Part 3 Standards of Variation  
 

A. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not vary the provisions of this Ordinance as 
authorized in this Article 3, Section B, unless they have made findings based upon 
the evidence presented to it in the following cases: 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to 
be used only under the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;.  
 

JP Morgan Chase requests a variation to add solar panels to the roof-top of the existing 
building. Under strict application of the code, solar panels are not allowed on most sloped 
roof buildings and in the B-2 district flat roofs are discouraged (Article 7, Section B, Part 
5,f). Without a variance, JP Morgan Chase has no path forward to install solar on this 
property. As solar becomes more common, this will impact the resale value of the 
property. The requested variance will support Comprehensive Plan goal 4.2 “Improve  
energy efficiency, foster appropriately scaled and located local energy production and 
increase the use of renewable energy.” 
 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances; and 
The unique architectural character of the building; having a sloped roof is encouraged by 
Village of Frankfort Site Development Regulations but this unique architectural character 
excludes the installation of solar under strict application of the code. 
  



| Page 7 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the 
locality. 

The roof-top solar panel installation has been designed to maximize renewable energy 
production with minimal aesthetic impacts. The panels are flush mounted with an antiglare 
coating and the equipment colors are muted. The solar panels will be visible from adjoining 
properties but they will be heavily buffered by extensive existing landscaping and trees 
along La Grange Road and Colorado Ave and between parcels. The accessory equipment 
will be located on the North side of the building, grouped with similar existing equipment 
and away from the public rights of way. The solar equipment is compatible with the 
appearance and commercial character of the neighboring properties and supports the 
community generated comprehensive plan goal of increasing the use of local renewable 
energy production. 



 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Standards of Variation 

 
Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request. The Zoning Board of Appeals 
must answer the following three findings favorable to the applicant based upon the evidence provided. 
To assist the Zoning Board of Appeals in their review of the variation request(s), please provide responses 
to the following “Standards of Variation.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under 

the conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances; and  
 
 
 
 
 
3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 
  
 
 
 
For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals also determines if 
the following seven facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by the evidence. Please 
provide responses to the following additional “Standards of Variation.”  
 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 

involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

 
 
 
 
 

 JP Morgan Chase requests a variation to add solar panels to the roof-top of the
existing building. Under strict application of the code, solar panels are not allowed on
most sloped roof buildings and in the B-2 district flat roofs are discouraged (Article 7,
Section B, Part 5,f). Without a variance, JP Morgan Chase has no path forward to
install solar on this property. As solar becomes more common, this will impact the
resale value of the property. The requested variance will support Comprehensive
Plan goal 4.2 “Improve  energy efficiency, foster appropriately scaled and located
local energy production and increase the use of renewable energy.”
The unique architectural character of the building; having a sloped roof is
encouraged by Village of Frankfort Site Development Regulations but this unique
architectural character excludes the installation of solar under strict application of the
code.

The roof-top solar panel installation has been designed to maximize renewable
energy production with minimal aesthetic impacts. The panels are flush mounted with
an antiglare coating and the equipment colors are muted. The solar panels will be
visible from adjoining properties but they will be heavily buffered by extensive existing
landscaping and trees along La Grange Road and Colorado Ave and between
parcels. The accessory equipment will be located on the North side of the building,
grouped with similar existing equipment and away from the public rights of way. The
solar equipment is compatible with the appearance and commercial character of the
neighboring properties and supports the community generated comprehensive plan
goal of increasing the use of local renewable energy production.

The topographical conditions of the property are not relevant for this application.

cgruba
Received



2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;  

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 

the property;  
 
 
 
 
 
4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an 

interest in the property;  
 
 
 
 
 
5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to 

other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  
 
 
 
 
 
6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood; or  

 
 
 
 
 
7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, 

substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially 
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.  

 

 

 

 

This variation is based on the fact that this roof is pitched and does not have a
parapet wall to fully screen solar panels. Other properties in this zoning classification
with flat roofs and parapets would not require a variation.

The purpose of the variation is to increase the use of renewable energy as supported
by Comprehensive plan goal 4.2; decreasing carbon footprint.

The hardship has not been created by any person presently having interest in the
property.

The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to
other properties in the neighborhood. The proposed solar panels will reduce strain on
the power grid and provide a sustainable source of power in the neighborhood.

The addition of solar panels to the existing roof-top will not lessen the architectural
appeal or functional plan of the neighborhood. The panels will be flush mounted and 
unobtrusive. 

The proposed solar panels will be installed in compliance with all required
manufacture specifications and in compliance with local code. 



Received 5.5.22











Received 5.5.22









SOUTH PROPERTY LINE NEAR COLORADO ROAD ENTRANCE, LOOKING NORTHWEST 

SOUTH PROPERTY LINE, LOOKING WEST ALONG COLORADO ROAD



SOUTH FACADE OF BUILDING

SOUTH AND WEST FACADE OF BUILDING



VIEW FROM INTERSECTION OF COLORADO 
AND LA GRANGE, LOOKING NORTHEAST

VIEW OF WEST FACADE OF BUILDING FROM 
LA GRANGE, BETWEEN TREES



Google Street View, September 2021 

 



Google Street View, November 2021 

 



Google Street View, December 2021 

 

 



  1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA May 26, 2022 

 
Project: Facen4Ward Venues, LLC     
Meeting Type:  Workshop 
Request: Special Use (indoor entertainment) 
Location: 20879 S. La Grange (former Allstate tenant space) 
Subdivision:  None (Butera Center Plaza)  
Applicant:  Marlin & Kristen Facen 
Prop. Owner: Butera Center Management 
Representative: Kristen Facen 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 10.58 acres                      Figure 1. Location Map 
PIN: 19-09-22-100-051-0000 
Existing Zoning:  B-2, Community Business  
Proposed Zoning: N/A  
Buildings: 3 buildings 
Total Sq. Ft.: 2,100 square feet (tenant space) 

  
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property Retail Plaza General 
Commercial 

B-2 

North Bank, office General 
Commercial 

B-2, B-4 

South  Office, retail  General 
Commercial 

B-2 

East Single-Family 
Residential 

Single-Family 
Attached Res. 

R-4 

West  Bank General 
Commercial 

B-2 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant is proposing to operate an event center space within a tenant space at the Butera Center Plaza 
located at 20879 S. La Grange Road.  Event center spaces are classified as indoor entertainment and require a 
special use permit within the B-2 zone district.  No exterior changes to the building or site are proposed with this 
use.  The applicant is not seeking a liquor license in conjunction with this use.   
 

Attachments 
• Location Map, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scale 1:1,500 
• Location Map, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scale 1:6,000 
• Plat of Survey of Butera Center with tenant space outlined in red 
• Existing floorplan of tenant space, provided by applicant 
• Proposed floorplan of tenant space, prepared by applicant 
• Background (narrative) of proposed use, provided by applicant 
• Special Use findings of fact, provided by applicant 
• Photographs of space, taken by staff 5.13.22 

 
 



  2 

Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 

1. The space would be used for social and corporate events, including but not limited to executive retreats, 
board meetings, workshops, receptions, bridal & baby showers and anniversaries.  
 

2. The space would be designed to accommodate up to 75 guests.  
 

3. Guests would cater-in food.  
 

4. At this time, the applicant is not seeking a Liquor License in conjunction with the proposed Special Use 
Permit for Indoor Entertainment.  Private events which include alcohol would require a Class N (private 
banquet event facilities) Liquor License. 

 
5. An event host (chaperone) would be on-site during each event. 

 
6. The space would operate 10 am – 9 pm (Mon-Wed) and 10 am – 10 pm (Fri-Sun).  Article 6, Part 2(q) of 

the Zoning Ordinance refers to hours of operation and states that non-residential uses may be open for 
business between the hours of 7 am and 11 pm. Establishments with operating hours outside of these 
normal operating hours must be approved as a special use according to the regulations of Article 3, 
Section E.  The applicant is not proposing hours of operation that are outside of normal hours of 
operation. 

 
7. There would be some minor interior work, as per the proposed floorplan.   

 
8. Indoor recreation uses require 1 parking space for every 4 patrons based upon the maximum capacity of 

the tenant space, plus one space for each employee during the largest working shift.  The maximum 
capacity of a space can only be determined by the Fire District and the Building Department after the 
space has been constructed, making an exact number impossible to determine at this time.  However, 
according to the Chapter 10, Section 104 of the International Fire Code (used by the Frankfort Fire 
Protection District), the maximum capacity of the subject space is estimated to be 140 persons (15 net 
square feet per person).  Therefore 36 parking spaces are required per the Zoning Ordinance (including 1 
space for the 1 employee).  The actual parking requirement will likely be less than 36, once tables, chairs 
and entertainment areas are factored into the maximum occupancy equation.   

 
9. From a practical standpoint, the existing parking lot in the Butera Center Plaza is typically under-utilized 

during normal business hours.  Per the attached survey, there are 482 parking spaces within the plaza.   
 
Staff’s Review 
 
Staff offers the following comments regarding the findings of fact used to determine the merits of the special use 
request, per the Zoning Ordinance.  The applicant has provided responses to these findings of fact on a separate 
attachment.    
 
Findings of Fact: 
 
No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find: 
 
a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  
 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
neighborhood.  



  3 

 
c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 
d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance 
with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a 
substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 
e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being provided.  
 
f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize 
traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 
g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is 
located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission.  
 
Affirmative Motion 
 

For the Commission’s consideration, staff is providing the following proposed affirmative motion language for the 
special use requests.  

1. Recommend the Village Board approve a special use for indoor recreation (event space) at 20879 S. La 
Grange Road, in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact.   

 
 
 



ABBEY DR

W LINCOLN HWY

E COLORADO AVE

S L
A 

GR
AN

GE
 R

D

AS
PE

N 
ST

S 9
4T

H 
AV

E

S 93RD AVE

N 
95

TH
 AV

E
W COLORADO AVE

LIN
COLNWAY LN

FR
ANC

ISC
A WA

Y

HU
NT

CL
UB

DR

VAIL DR

N 
WH

ITE
 ST

MARKET ST

FOX RUN CIR

ABBOT CT

FOX RUN CTN 
BA

NK
VIE

W
 D

R

CLOISTER PL

CO
NV

ENT CT

ASH

LEY CT

W BANKVIEW DR

CL
OI

ST
ER

 C
T

CA
RD

IN
AL

 C
T

AB
BE

Y W
OO

DS
 CT

 N

PUEBLO CT

BOULDER CT

VESPER LN

AB
BE

Y D
R

20879 S. La Grange - Proposed Event Space

µ

0 500 1,000250
Feet



E COLORADO AVE

S LA GRANGE RD

ASHLEYCT

W BANKVIEW DR

W COLORADO AVE

20879 S. La Grange - Proposed Event Space

µ
0 250 500125

Feet



cgruba
Received

cgruba
Rectangle



EXISTING FLOORPLAN

cgruba
Received



PROPOSED FLOORPLAN

cgruba
Received



Toya M. Sledd, Realtor
Visions Manifested Realty LLC 

155 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 4250, Chicago, IL 60606 
312.909.6560

toyasledd@gmail.com

Exhibit A

Background

Facen4Ward Venues is a premier event planning company offering event décor packages and 
event space for social and corporate events (executive retreats, board meetings, workshops, 
receptions, bridal and baby showers, anniversaries, etc.) for up to 75 guests. Guests will be 
allowed to cater or bring food and non-alcoholic beverages. Liquor use and consumption will not 
be permitted at the any events held at the space. An event host will be on duty for all 
engagements to ensure groups/individuals comply with the rules and regulations for the use of 
the space. The hours of operation are from 10:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m. Monday through 
Wednesday; and 10:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. Friday through Sunday. 

Proposed Build-Out for 20879 S. LaGrange Rd., Frankfort

At the Tenant’s expense, the Tenant shall perform the following: 
1. Remove walls, window, and door from original conference room near main entrance to 

add more square footage to the main floor area. (See Exhibit B).
2. Remove and dispose all carpet in all areas. 
3. Install vinyl or epoxy flooring throughout the space. 
4. Install track lighting on ceilings. 
5. Install new vanity and lighting in bathroom. 
6. Install television mounts to walls
7. Install Wi-fi connectivity in space.
8. Re-paint all areas in a neutral color. 
9. Install company signage on entrance.

The final dimensions and layout of the space, improvements and finishes of the premises shall 
be subject to advance approval by the Landlord and Tenant. Improvements to be completed by 
a licensed and bonded contractor and laborers hired by the tenant. 

cgruba
Received



 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 

 
Article 3, Section E, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use permit request. The Plan Commission must 
make the following seven findings based upon the evidence provided. To assist the Plan Commission in 
their review of the special use permit request(s), please provide responses to the following “Findings of 
Fact.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 

endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
  
 
 
 
 
4. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 

Facen4Ward Venues will maintain all ordinances and will not conflict with any 
standards the village upholds.

Facen4Ward Venues will conduct its events orderly and operate the facility 
according to all rules and regulations. Facen4Ward Venues will create connections 
and build rapport while servicing the community within the neighborhood.

Facen4Ward Venues affairs will hold to the reputation that the district promotes. 
Facen4Ward Venues operates with the best practices in mind to be as efficient and 
effective as possible.

Facen4Ward Venues will use proper etiquette when implementing any exterior 
appeal to the space in question and will avoid any deed restrictions the property may 
have.



5. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so 

designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 

 

 

 

7. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village 
Board, pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. 

 
 

Facen4Ward Venues will work closely with the owner to ensure all facility matters are 
up to code and properly managed.

Facen4Ward Venues will comply with all of the Village and Frankfort Town Centers 
rules and guidelines to mimimize traffic congestion.

Facen4Ward Venues will comply with all  of the village and Frankfort Town Centers 
stipulations and guidelines while operating in business.





1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                   May 26, 2022 

 
Project: Savana Expedited LLC 
Meeting Type:  Workshop  
Requests: Special Use Permit for a Truck Terminal in the I-2 General Industrial District; Special Use 

Permit for Automobile (Truck/Trailer) Repair and Service; Preliminary and Final Plat of 
Subdivision to create a single lot of record from an unsubdivided parcel of land 

Location: 9350 W. Laraway Road  
Applicant:  Savana Expedited LLC 
Prop. Owner:  Savana Expedited LLC 
Consultants:  Aurimas Spucys, Morris Engineering, Inc.  
Representative: Kristina Vlastelica, Co-Owner of Savana Expedited LLC   
Report By:  Michael J. Schwarz, AICP 
 

Site Details 
 

Parcel/Lot Size: 4.75 acres (approx. 4.18 net acres after ROW dedication)         Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 19-09-27-300-023-0000 
Existing Zoning:  I-2 General Industrial District 
Prop.  Zoning: I-2 General Industrial District with a Special Use 

Permit for a Truck Terminal and a Special Use 
Permit for Automobile (Truck/Trailer) Repair 
and Service  

Building(s) / Lot(s): 1 building / 1 lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Industrial         Business Park I-2 

North  Industrial 
 

        Business Park I-1 

South  Commercial; Industrial  Business Park B-4; I-2 

East Undeveloped; Industrial  Business Park I-1 

West Industrial  Business Park I-1 

 
Project Summary  
 
The applicant, Savana Expedited LLC, represented by Kristina Vlastelica, has filed an application requesting a Special 
Use Permit for a Truck Terminal in the I-2 General Industrial District and a Preliminary and Final Plat of Subdivision 
to create a single lot of record from an unsubdivided parcel of land, for the property located at 9350 Laraway Road, 
Frankfort, Illinois.  Correspondence from the applicant indicates that the company would also perform truck and 
trailer repairs for the equipment that it owns (not for the general public).  Therefore, the application will be a need 
to be amended to add a request for a Special Use Permit for automobile (truck/trailer) repair and service in the I-2 
General Industrial District.   
 
 
 
 
 



2 

Property Background  
 
It is currently not known when the property was annexed into the Village of Frankfort and rezoned to the I-2 General 
Industrial District.  The property does not appear as annexed property on the 1974 Zoning Map.  On the 1988 Zoning 
Map, which is the next available Zoning Map in the Village records, the property is shown as being annexed into the 
Village and zoned I-2 General Industrial District.  According to the Frankfort Township Assessor property information 
web page, the existing 24,425 square-foot warehouse building was constructed in 1987.  However, a recent real 
estate listing found online indicates that the building was constructed in 1977.  The existing site includes a number 
of dimensional and other physical non-conformities with the current Zoning Ordinance.  For example, the existing 
parking areas are gravel (pavement is required) and the front parking area is located approximately one foot from 
the west property line (5 feet minimum is required).   
 

Attachments 
1. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
2. Frankfort Industrial Subdivision Plat recorded in 1997 (adjacent to subject property)  
3. Site Photographs taken 12.28.20 
4. Site Photographs taken 5.19.22 
5. ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey dated 11.9.20, received 1.8.21 
6. Engineering Plan Set dated 5.5.21, received 3.28.22 

• Cover Sheet dated 5.5.21 
• Demolition Plan dated 5.5.21 
• Geometric Plan dated 5.5.21 
• Utility Plan dated 5.5.21 
• Grading and Erosion Control Plan dated 5.5.21 
• Landscape Plan dated 5.5.21 
• Photometrics Plan dated 5.5.21 
• Vehicle Turning Exhibit dated 5.5.21 
• Details dated 5.5.21 

7. Floor Plan with Proposed Changes received 5.19.22 
 

Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 
Land Use 
 
The applicant has desires to establish and operate a Truck Terminal on the property, using the existing building for 
office space and warehousing.  The applicant provided the following business description stating that the following 
functions would take place: 
 

1. Cross Dock. We would need a ramp, where trucks would be able to unload the cargo. We would combine 
separate shipments and that cargo would be transferred to another trailer. 
 

2. Storage. We have clients, who need to pick up a cargo now, but deliver it to the consignee in a week or  
We would be the facility, where they would store the cargo for that period. 
 

3. Maintenance. Mostly we work with Contractors / Owner Operators and we don’t have to service their 
equipment. However, we do have some trucks and trailers, that we own and before we let them on the 
road, we do need to inspect it and repair if needed. 
 

4. Parking. 90% of our trucks and trailers are on the road. We hire drivers, owner operators from every state. 
All their equipment is kept where they live. But once we do hiring, we have to inspect their equipment and 
we have meetings with drivers, during that time we have to have space for parking. Once driver has a 



3 

short vacation, we would let them park in our yard. According to company rules, if driver takes vacation 
for more than a week, the equipment will be given to another driver. 
 

5. Office. All our work is done on line. Client search, contracts, load search, dispatching and so on. We do 
need to set up all computers for that purpose. Some office personnel will have the opportunity to work 
from home 50%, so the office will not be crowded on a daily basis. 

 
Hours of Operation 
 
The applicant has indicated that the proposed business hours of operation for the various uses of the building are: 

 
• Office: 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday   
• Warehouse:  7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday 
• Maintenance/Repair Shop:  Typically 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (but until 11:00 p.m. if necessary) 

Monday through Saturday 
 

The proposed hours are within the Village’s normal hours of operation which are 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. per Article 
6, Part 2(q) of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Employees 
 
The applicant has indicated that there would be no more than 10 employees on the property at any time. 
 
Zoning 
 

1. The applicant proposes to rehabilitate and renovate an existing 24,425 square-foot, brick, one-story 
warehouse building and the associated 4.75-acre property located at 9350 W. Laraway Road for a proposed 
truck terminal. 

2. A Special Use Permit for a Truck Terminal is required in the I-2 General Industrial District. 
3. The Village's ordinance does not contain specific use standards for Truck Terminals.  Truck/trailer parking 

and traffic flow are often primary areas of consideration for such uses.  
 
Site Plan 
 

1. The Site Plan depicts the existing 24,425 square-foot warehouse building and existing gravel driveway and 
parking areas. 

2. The Site Plan depicts an existing standard size vehicle parking lot with 16 spaces, including 2 handicap 
accessible spaces, located in front of the building with an existing west driveway access on Laraway Road.  
The parking lot is presently gravel and is overgrown with areas of grass.  The applicant proposes to pave 
and stripe this existing parking lot.  The existing parking lot curb is 1-2 feet from the west property line 
which does not comply with the minimum 5-foot parking lot setback required by Article 7, Section B, Part 
1(b) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Similarly, along the east property line, the existing curb is 1-2 feet from east 
property line along the east entrance. The Village’s Consulting Engineer has indicated in their review 
comments that if the east drive aisle and gate will be reconfigured, they recommend that the drive aisle 
width be modified to 26’ minimum width. 

3. The Site Plan depicts additional existing standard size vehicle parking spaces on the east side of the building 
(17 spaces) and on the north side of the building (5 spaces), which are accessible from the existing east 
driveway access on Laraway Road.   

4. The Site Plan depicts a proposed 33-space truck and trailer parking lot behind the building, with a proposed 
new access on Ontario Street which is under the jurisdiction of the Village of Frankfort.  The area behind 
the building is presently partially gravel and is overgrown with vegetation, including several areas of older 
stockpiled natural materials. 

5. The existing building complies with all required setbacks in the I-2 General Industrial District.  
6. The Zoning Ordinance does not have a specified parking ratio for Truck Terminals.  However, the Zoning 

Ordinance requires warehouses to provide parking at a ratio of one (1) space per employee for the work 



4 

shift with the largest number of employees; plus one (1) space per 5,000 square feet of gross floor area.  
Per the applicant’s engineer, the warehouse portion of the building is 10,852 square feet, which would 
require 3 spaces.  The applicant has indicated that there would be no more than 10 employees on the 
property at any time.  Therefore, the warehouse component of the building would require 13 spaces. 

7. The Zoning Ordinance requires offices to provide parking at a ratio of one (1) space per 200 square feet of 
gross floor area. Per the applicant’s engineer, the office portion of the building will be 5,000 square feet, 
which would require 20 spaces.  

8.  The Zoning Ordinance requires vehicle repair shops to provide parking at a ratio of two (2) spaces per 1,000 
square feet of gross floor area. Per the applicant’s engineer, the repair shop portion of the building will be 
7,000 square feet, would require 14 spaces.  

9. A total of 38 standard vehicle parking spaces are depicted on the Site Plan, including 2 handicap accessible 
spaces.  A total of 33 truck/trailer parking spaces are depicted on the Site Plan.  When all parking spaces 
are combined, a total of 71 parking spaces are provided, which complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. The Zoning Ordinance requires buildings that are used for cartage, express, and truck facilities, containing 
5,000 to 40,000 square feet of gross floor area, to provide one (1) loading berth.  Therefore, the existing 
24,425 square-foot building is required to provide one (1) loading berth. The existing building presently has 
a total of four (4) loading berths, including two (2) docks with high doors and two (2) docks with grade-level 
doors, which complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 

11. As depicted on the Site Plan, the applicant proposes to add three (3) new garage door openings on the 
north façade of the building, where one (1) garage door presently exists.  These garage doors would be used 
to allow trucks and trailers to be pulled into the building for repairs.  The other existing dock doors would 
remain.  These include one (1) on the west façade of the northern portion of the building and two (2) on 
the east façade of the building. 

12. The Site Plan depicts an existing 10-foot by 12-foot trash enclosure on the west side of the northern wing 
of the building.  The Zoning Ordinance requires that trash enclosures be constructed of materials to match 
the exterior of the building (in this case brick).  Details for the existing trash enclosure have not been 
provided at this time.  

13. The Site Plan depicts the existing 6-foot high chain link fence which is generally located around the 
perimeter of the property behind the front (south) façade of the building, including a chain link swing gate 
at the east vehicle entrance.   The applicant intends to repair and reuse the existing fence.  Article 6, Part 
3(f)(5) of the Zoning Ordinance provides that chain link fences are prohibited where visible from a public 
road, unless such fence is concealed with landscaping. Chain link fences may be permitted in the rear of a 
property or behind the front extent of the primary building, and shall include privacy slats.   

14. The Site Plan depicts two (2) proposed stormwater detention basins that do not exist today.  One basin 
would be located in front of the building partially within the required 25-foot landscape yard along Laraway 
Road.  Another basin would be located to the north of the office portion of the building.  

15.  The I-2 General Industrial District requires a maximum impervious surface lot coverage of 85%.  Village staff 
is awaiting confirmation from the applicant’s design engineer to confirm that that the proposed 
redevelopment will have enough green space to comply with this requirement after the right-of-way 
dedications are made and accounting for all proposed improvements. 
 

Landscape Plan  
 

1. The applicant has submitted a Landscape Plan which depicts the proposed trees and other plantings.  
2. Staff has not performed a detailed review of the Landscape Plan at this time.  Upon initial review, a 25-foot 

landscaped front yard is required along Laraway Road and a 20’ landscaped front yard is required along all 
Ontario Street to comply with the landscape regulations.   These yards are reflected on the Landscape Plan. 
However, due to the Will County Department of Transportation’s request for 25 feet of additional right-of-
way (total of 75 feet from the centerline of Laraway Road), the required 25-foot landscape yard along 
Laraway Road may need to be shifted north, which would impact the existing west parking lot and the 
proposed stormwater detention basin in front of the building. 

3. The proposed Demolition Plan sheet contemplates the removal of a number of existing trees in the center 
portion of the site where the proposed new truck/trailer parking lot would be located.  This drawing does 
not replace the need for a Tree Survey which identifies all of the trees to be removed and lists their species 



5 

and condition in a table, as well as provides the total caliper sizes of those trees which are proposed to be 
removed.  

 
Engineering Plans 
 

1. The applicant has submitted Engineering Plans which have been reviewed by the Village’s consulting 
engineer.  The most recent review comments have been forwarded to the applicant.   

 
Architecture 
 

1. The applicant intends to replace the broken and missing brick on the existing east and west wing-walls of 
the building and on the raised planting bed that surrounds the base of the ground sign.  Due to the Will 
County Department of Transportation’s request for 25 feet of additional right-of-way (total of 75 feet from 
the centerline of Laraway Road), the existing ground sign may need to be removed/relocated. 

2. As depicted on the Site Plan, the applicant proposes to add three (3) new garage door openings on the 
north façade of the building, where one (1) garage door presently exists.  The brick to be removed from the 
new wall openings potentially may be used to replace the broken and missing brick on the east and west 
wing walls on the south façade of the building so that the brick colors match.  

 
Photometrics Plan 
 

4. The applicant has provided a Photometrics Plan (refer to Sheet 7 of the Engineering Plans).  Light fixture 
and light pole specifications have not been provided at this time.  The Village’s Municipal Code requires 
decorative bases for all parking lot light poles. 

5. The Photometrics Plans depicts four (4) new wall-mounted light fixtures on the east, north and west sides 
of the building, two (2) new pole-mounted light fixtures in the front parking lot, and two (2) new pole-
mounted light fixtures in the proposed rear (truck/trailer) parking lot.    

6. Parking lot light fixtures may be mounted at 25' or less, which is the maximum height permitted by the 
Municipal Code. 

7. The Photometrics Plan reflects that there are foot-candle readings along the east property line that exceed 
the 0.5 footcandles that are permitted.  The light fixtures will need to be modified or adjusted to comply 
with this requirement. 
 

Signage 
 

1. There is an existing internally-illuminated ground sign located along Laraway Road.  At present, the sign 
panel reflects the address of the building in black text on a white background.  The applicant intends to 
replace the existing sign panels with the name of the business.  Any future signage will require a Sign Permit.  
Due to the Will County Department of Transportation’s request for 25 feet of additional right-of-way (total 
of 75 feet from the centerline of Laraway Road), the existing ground sign may need to be 
removed/relocated.  Any new freestanding sign must maintain a setback of 25 feet from the property line. 
 

Preliminary and Final Plat of Subdivision 
 

The application includes a request for a Preliminary and Final Plat of Subdivision to create a single lot of record from 
an unsubdivided parcel of land.  A number of technical revisions to the plat are necessary prior to recording. 
 
Per correspondence from the Will County Department of Transportation dated March 14, 2022, the agency will 
require a total of 75 feet of right-of-way along Laraway Road from the centerline of the right-of-way.  Therefore a 
25-foot right-of-way dedication will be required.  This is in addition to the existing 50-foot right-of-way dedication 
presently depicted on the plat.  Also, the agency will require the dedication of right-of-way “in fee” as it appears that 
the existing right-of-way is a “roadway purposes” dedication which is similar to an easement.  This additional right-
of-way dedication will impact the required 25-foot landscaped yard along Laraway Road, the existing ground sign, 
and the proposed stormwater detention basin along Laraway Road. 
Standards for Special Uses  



6 

 
For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use request.  
 
The Plan Commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing plans and 
specifications for the proposed special use, which shall remain a part of the permanent record of the Plan 
Commission. The Plan Commission shall submit same, together with its recommendation to the Village Board for 
final action. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find:  
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, 
the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood.  
 

c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided.  
 

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which 
it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant 
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission.  
 

Standards of Variation  
 

At this time, the applicant is not requesting any variations for the project.  However, should this change, for reference 
during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or 
“standards” that the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request.  
 

a. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not vary the provisions of this Ordinance as authorized in this Article 3, 
Section B, unless they have made findings based upon the evidence presented to it in the following cases:  

 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 

conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  
 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances;  
 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 

b. For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals, in making this 
determination, whenever there are practical difficulties or particular hardships, shall also take into 
consideration the extent to which the following facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by 
the evidence:  



7 

1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 
involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, 
if the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

 
2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, generally, 

to other property within the same zoning classification;  
 

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 
the property;  
 

4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an 
interest in the property;  
 

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  
 

6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood;  
 

7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, 
substantially increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially 
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.  

 

 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.07

1: 2,257

0 Miles

9350 W. Laraway Road

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

5/19/2022 Date:

0.04

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships







Site Photos – 9350 W. Laraway Road (December 28, 2020) 

 

Figure 1: 9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking west from adjacent property to the east. 

 

   Figure 2:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking south from the adjacent property to the east.   
    

   



 

   Figure 3:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking south from the adjacent property to the east.   

 

   Figure 4:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking west from adjacent property to the east. 
 

 

 



 

  Figure 5: 9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking west from adjacent property to the east. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

Figure 6:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking north from the west parking lot. 



 

  

 Figure 7:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking northeast from the west parking lot.   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 8:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking east from the west parking lot.   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9:  9350 W. Laraway Road viewed looking northeast from the west parking lot. 

Figure 10:  9350 W. Laraway Road ground sign, viewed looking southeast from west parking lot. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 12:  9350 W. Laraway Road west parking lot, viewed looking south from near the building. 

Figure 11:  9350 W. Laraway Road south facade, viewed looking north from front yard along Laraway 
Road. 



 

   Figure 13:  9350 W. Laraway Road southwest building entrance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 14:  9350 W. Laraway Road wing wall attached to the south building façade. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 15:  9350 W. Laraway Road south building façade and rear dock doors. 

Figure 16:  9350 W. Laraway Road chain link fence and gate on east side of building. 



 

   Figure 17:  9350 W. Laraway Road east entrance onto Laraway Road, viewed looking south. 



Site Photos – 9350 W. Laraway Road (May 19, 2022) 

 

Figure 1: 9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking north from the east entrance from Laraway Road. 

 

  Figure 2:  9350 W. Laraway Road, viewed looking north from the west parking lot.   
    

   



 

  Figure 3: Existing east entrance from Laraway Road viewed looking north. 

 

   Figure 4:  Existing parking area view from west entrance on Laraway Road looking north. 
 

 

 



 

  Figure 5: 9350 W. Laraway Road ground sign, viewed looking east from west entrance from Laraway Road. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

Figure 6: Existing parking lot curb along west side of west parking area. 



 

  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      Figure 7:  Existing parking lot curb along west side of west parking area. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 8:  Existing parking lot curb along west side of west parking area. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9:  North side of 9350 W. Laraway Road viewed looking south from Ontario Street. 

Figure 10: North side of 9350 W. Laraway Road looking south from Ontario Street. 



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Figure 11: North side of 9350 W. Laraway Road looking south from Ontario Street. 

Figure 12:  North side of 9350 W. Laraway Road looking south from Ontario Street. 



cgruba
Received



COVER SHEET 1

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

N
O

TI
C

E 
TO

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
S

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

W
H

EN
 T

H
E 

PL
AN

S 
O

R
 S

PE
C

IA
L 

PR
O

VI
SI

O
N

S 
IN

C
LU

D
E 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 P

ER
TA

IN
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F
O

VE
R

H
EA

D
 A

N
D

/O
R

 U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TY

 F
AC

IL
IT

IE
S,

 S
U

C
H

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 R

EP
R

ES
EN

TS
 O

N
LY

  T
H

E
O

PI
N

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 A

S 
TO

 T
H

E 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SU
C

H
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
N

D
 IS

 O
N

LY
 IN

C
LU

D
ED

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

C
O

N
VE

N
IE

N
C

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
BI

D
D

ER
. T

H
E 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 A

N
D

 T
H

E 
O

W
N

ER
 A

SS
U

M
E 

N
O

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 W
H

AT
SO

EV
ER

IN
 R

ES
PE

C
T 

TO
 T

H
E 

SU
FF

IC
IE

N
C

Y 
O

R
 V

ER
AC

IT
Y 

O
F 

TH
E 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
PL

AN
S 

R
EL

AT
IV

E 
TO

TH
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 U

TI
LI

TY
 F

AC
IL

IT
IE

S 
O

R
 T

H
E 

M
AN

N
ER

 IN
 W

H
IC

H
 T

H
EY

 A
R

E 
TO

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D
O

R
 A

D
JU

ST
ED

. I
T 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

S 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

TY
 T

O
 D

ET
ER

M
IN

E 
TH

E 
AC

TU
AL

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F

AL
L 

SU
C

H
  F

AC
IL

IT
IE

S.
 H

E 
SH

AL
L 

AL
SO

 O
BT

AI
N

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E 
R

ES
PE

C
TI

VE
 U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S 

D
ET

AI
LE

D
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 R
EL

AT
IV

E 
TO

 T
H

E 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
EI

R
 F

AC
IL

IT
IE

S 
AN

D
 T

H
E 

W
O

R
KI

N
G

 S
C

H
ED

U
LE

S 
O

F 
TH

E
U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S 

FO
R

 R
EM

O
VI

N
G

 O
R

 A
D

JU
ST

IN
G

 T
H

EM
.

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R
 N

O
TI

FY
IN

G
 A

LL
 P

U
BL

IC
 A

N
D

 P
R

IV
AT

E 
U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S

W
H

IC
H

 M
AY

 H
AV

E 
O

VE
R

H
EA

D
 O

R
 U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

AC
IL

IT
IE

S 
IN

 T
H

E 
AR

EA
 B

EF
O

R
E 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 B
EG

IN
S.

(S
EE

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

S)

M
AN

H
O

LE
C

AT
C

H
 B

AS
IN

IN
LE

T
C

LE
AN

O
U

T
FL

AR
ED

 E
N

D
 S

EC
TI

O
N

W
AT

ER
 V

AL
VE

 B
O

X
BU

FF
AL

O
 B

O
X 

(B
.B

O
X)

W
AT

ER
 V

AL
VE

 &
 V

AU
LT

FI
R

E 
H

YD
R

AN
T

W
EL

L
G

AS
 V

AL
VE

G
AS

 M
ET

ER
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

AT
IO

N
 C

AN
IS

TE
R

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
AT

IO
N

 H
AN

D
H

O
LE

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
AT

IO
N

 M
AN

H
O

LE
EL

EC
TR

IC
 C

AN
IS

TE
R

EL
EC

TR
IC

 H
AN

D
H

O
LE

EL
EC

TR
IC

 M
AN

H
O

LE
EL

EC
TR

IC
 M

ET
ER

TR
AF

FI
C

 S
IG

N
AL

TR
AF

FI
C

 H
AN

D
H

O
LE

TR
AF

FI
C

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

BO
X

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
O

LE
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

O
LE

 W
/ L

IG
H

T
ST

R
EE

T 
LI

G
H

T
ST

R
EE

T 
SI

G
N

BO
R

IN
G

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

M
AI

LB
O

X
SP

O
T 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

AD
JA

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
EA

SE
M

EN
T 

LI
N

E
SE

TB
AC

K 
LI

N
E

R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 L
IN

E
ST

O
R

M
 S

EW
ER

 L
IN

E
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
E

W
AT

ER
M

AI
N

 L
IN

E
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 G

AS
 L

IN
E

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

M
M

. L
IN

E
U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

 U
TI

LI
TY

FE
N

C
E 

LI
N

E
G

U
AR

D
R

AI
L 

LI
N

E
C

O
N

TO
U

R
 L

IN
E

D
EC

ID
U

O
U

S 
TR

EE

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N

 T
R

EE

O
VE

R
LA

N
D

 F
LO

O
D

 R
O

U
TE

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

R
O

U
TE

D
O

W
N

SP
O

U
T

SI
LT

 F
EN

C
E 

LI
N

E

D
EP

R
ES

SE
D

 C
U

R
B

SO
IL

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 G
EO

TE
XT

IL
E

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E

BR
IC

K

AS
PH

AL
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G

G
R

AV
EL

ST
O

N
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
PR

O
PO

SE
D

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

69
9.

74
69

9.
5

06
2-

06
80

43
14

TH
M

AR
C

H
22

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
IL

LI
N

O
IS

   
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
SS

.
C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

D
uP

AG
E)

I, 
ER

IC
 F

O
YT

IK
, A

 R
EG

IS
TE

R
ED

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 O
F 

IL
LI

N
O

IS
, H

ER
EB

Y 
C

ER
TI

FY
 T

H
AT

 T
H

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

M
O

R
R

IS
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
, I

N
C

. 5
15

 W
AR

R
EN

VI
LL

E 
R

O
AD

, L
IS

LE
, I

LL
IN

O
IS

, 6
05

32
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
PE

R
SO

N
AL

 D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

. T
H

IS
 T

EC
H

N
IC

AL
SU

BM
IS

SI
O

N
 IS

 IN
TE

N
D

ED
 T

O
 B

E 
U

SE
D

 A
S 

AN
 IN

TE
G

R
AL

 P
AR

T 
O

F 
AN

D
 IN

 C
O

N
JU

N
C

TI
O

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S.

 I
FU

R
TH

ER
 S

TA
TE

 T
H

AT
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 W
IL

L 
N

O
T 

C
AU

SE
 P

O
N

D
IN

G
 O

R
 F

LO
O

D
IN

G
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

R
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T
PR

O
PE

R
TI

ES
.

D
AT

ED
 T

H
IS

 _
__

__
__

_ 
D

AY
 O

F_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_,

 A
.D

.  
20

__
_

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 IL
LI

N
O

IS
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

ED
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 N

O
. 0

62
-0

68
04

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 M
Y 

R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 E

XP
IR

ES
 O

N
 N

O
VE

M
BE

R
 3

0,
 2

02
3

W
 L

ar
aw

ay
 R

d

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 A

S 
H

ER
EO

N
 D

R
AW

N
IS

 B
AS

ED
 O

N
 A

N
 A

LT
A 

SU
R

VE
Y 

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
S 

AS
SO

C
IA

TE
D

 S
U

R
VE

Y,
 IN

C
.

D
AT

ED
 1

1/
09

/2
02

0 
O

R
D

ER
 #

20
-9

75
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEX OF SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. COVER SHEET COVER SHEET 2. DEMOLITION PLAN DEMOLITION PLAN 3. GEOMETRIC PLAN GEOMETRIC PLAN 4. UTILITY PLAN UTILITY PLAN 5. GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN 6. LANDSCAPE PLAN LANDSCAPE PLAN 7. PHOTOMETRICS PLAN PHOTOMETRICS PLAN 8. VEHICLE TURNING EXHIBIT VEHICLE TURNING EXHIBIT 9. DETAILSDETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
 LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOURCE BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNATION  -  WILL COUNTY GPS 934 -  WILL COUNTY GPS 934 PID          -  AE2581 -  AE2581 STATE/COUNTY -  IL/WILL -  IL/WILL USGS QUAD   -  FRANKFORT (2018)  -  FRANKFORT (2018)  DESCRIPTION: FROM INTERSECTION OF US ROUTE 45 AND STEGER ROAD, EAST ON STEGER 1.8 MILES TO PAVED CROSSROAD, STATION IN NORTHEAST QUADRANT. STATION IS FLUSH WITH SURFACE AND IS STAINLESS ROD WITH SLEEVE WITH CAST CAP AND LID. LID IS MISSING. NAVD88 ELEVATION: 785.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT ON NORTH SIDE OF ONTARIO STREET NEAR NORTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER. ELEVATION = 760.40 NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT ON SOUTH SIDE OF LARAWAY ROAD NEAR SOUTHWEST PROPERTY CORNER. ELEVATION = 756.61 NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK #4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT ON SOUTH SIDE OF LARAWAY ROAD NEAR SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER. ELEVATION = 754.02 NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST FLANGE BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT ON NORTH SIDE OF ONTARIO STREET NEAR NORTHWEST PROPERTY CORNER. ELEVATION = 764.11 NAVD88

mschwarz
Received



76
1.0

76
1.1

76
0.0

75
8.5

75
8.8

75
8.9

76
1.4 76

1.1

76
1.7

76
1.9

76
1.1

76
0.7

76
1.7

76
1.4

76
1.3

76
1.3

76
1.376

0.9

76
0.6

76
1.2

76
0.5

76
0.1

75
9.5

75
9.5

75
8.9

75
9.4

75
9.3

75
9.1

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
9.275

9.4

75
9.4

75
9.3

75
9.2

75
9.3

75
9.2 75

9.3 75
9.1

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.8

75
8.975

8.9

75
8.9

75
9.1

75
9.0

75
9.1

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
9.1

75
8.8

75
9.2

75
8.9

76
0.3

76
0.5

76
1.4

76
0.0

76
0.2 76

0.4

76
1.2

75
9.5

76
3.2

76
5.5

76
2.4

75
8.5

76
1.8

76
1.1

75
9.6

75
9.2

75
9.6

75
9.1

75
8.6

75
9.5

76
0.1 76

0.2

76
2.4

75
9.7

75
9.0 75

9.3
75

8.4
75

8.6

75
9.0

75
9.5

75
9.4

75
8.975

8.8

75
8.8

76
0.876

0.6

75
8.9

76
5.6

76
1.2

76
1.075

9.6
76

0.6

76
0.4

76
0.9

76
1.5

75
8.8

76
0.5

75
9.8

76
0.3

76
1.076

0.3

76
0.1

76
0.3

75
9.5

76
0.6

76
0.5

75
9.6

76
0.8

75
9.8

75
9.5

75
9.7

76
0.2

75
9.4

75
9.676

0.3

76
0.7

76
2.4

76
0.6

76
3.2

76
2.4

76
2.4

76
2.876

2.576
5.0

76
4.9

76
4.2

76
1.5

76
3.8

76
0.5

76
1.2

76
1.5

76
3.4

76
1.7

76
3.3

76
1.3

76
3.4

76
3.2

76
0.5

76
2.3

75
9.9

76
2.0

76
2.9

76
0.0

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
8.7

75
8.2

75
9.1

76
0.3

76
1.3

75
8.5

75
9.2

75
9.4

75
9.2

75
8.6

75
8.2

75
8.1

75
9.9

75
9.8

75
8.7

75
7.9

75
8.2

75
8.5

75
8.6

75
8.2

75
8.5

75
8.9

75
7.9

75
9.3 75

7.7

75
8.1 75

7.5
75

8.0

75
7.6

75
6.7

75
8.6

75
8.2

75
6.775

7.8

75
6.9

75
7.5

75
7.4

75
6.6

75
7.3 75

6.5

75
6.4

75
7.6

75
6.875

7.1

75
6.2

75
6.4

75
6.8

75
6.2

75
5.475

5.7
75

5.4

75
4.8

75
4.6

75
4.2

75
3.9

75
2.4

75
3.8

75
4.4

75
2.4

75
5.0

75
6.2

75
5.3

75
5.0

75
4.575

2.875
2.075

3.4

75
5.5

75
4.8

75
5.7

75
5.4

75
3.775

2.675
3.6

75
7.4

75
8.7

75
9.5

75
8.9

75
7.6

75
6.8

75
5.8

75
5.6

75
6.075

5.0

75
3.775

4.0

75
6.7

75
8.6

75
8.975

9.4

75
8.9

75
8.3

75
7.6

75
5.2

75
3.7

75
4.5

75
5.8

75
6.675

5.275
6.075

5.775
5.4

75
3.2

75
7.1

75
7.5

75
7.8

75
7.9 75

8.8

75
7.5

75
7.9

75
8.9

75
8.7 75

8.9

75
9.9

75
9.175

9.275
9.0

75
8.2

75
7.7

75
7.5

75
8.2

75
7.7

75
7.7

75
7.975

8.2

75
8.1

75
8.1

75
8.5

75
9.0

75
9.6

76
0.8 75

9.4

75
9.1

75
8.8

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
8.9

75
9.0

75
9.1

75
8.8

75
8.3 75

7.8

75
7.3

75
7.8

75
7.9

75
8.9

75
8.8

75
8.8

75
7.9

75
7.9

75
8.7

75
8.1

75
8.5

76
0.0

75
7.8

75
9.1

75
8.4

75
7.9

75
7.9

76
1.4

75
9.3

75
8.9

76
0.4

76
0.5

75
9.8

76
0.9

75
9.4

75
8.5

75
8.5

75
8.9

76
0.4

76
1.6 76

1.3

76
1.3

6B
C

76
0.9

2E
P

76
0.7

3E
P

76
1.1

7B
C

76
1.0

3B
C

76
0.5

6E
P

76
0.3

3E
P

76
0.7

8B
C

76
0.1

0B
C

75
9.6

1E
P

75
8.8

9E
P

75
9.3

0B
C

75
8.6

1B
C

75
8.1

5E
P

75
7.5

6E
P

75
8.0

2B
C

75
7.8

1B
C

75
7.3

8E
P

75
7.5

6E
P

75
7.9

8B
C

75
8.2

3B
C

75
7.8

0E
P75

7.9
3E

P

75
8.4

1B
C

75
8.3

3

75
7.9

3

75
7.7

1

75
7.6

1

75
8.3

9

75
8.9

9

75
9.8

3

76
0.5

7

76
0.8

6

76
0.9

6

76
1.0

7

75
7.8

3B
C

75
7.4

7E
P

75
7.8

8B
C

75
7.9

8B
C

75
7.5

5E
P

75
7.7

2E
P

75
8.1

3B
C

75
8.1

3B
C

75
7.6

9E
P

75
8.2

3E
P

75
8.8

4B
C

75
9.4

1B
C

75
8.9

2E
P

75
8.2

6E
P

75
8.8

2B
C

75
8.6

6B
C

75
8.1

2E
P

75
7.7

3E
P

75
8.2

6B
C

75
7.7

5B
C

75
7.2

8E
P

75
7.7

3B
C

75
7.9

4B
C

75
7.5

2E
P

75
7.6

4E
P

75
8.0

7B
C

75
8.4

8B
C

75
8.0

6E
P

75
8.4

2E
P

75
8.7

9B
C

75
9.1

2E
P

75
9.5

2B
C

75
8.4

5B
C

75
8.0

2E
P

75
7.2

9E
P

75
7.7

3B
C

75
7.8

3B
C

75
7.3

2E
P

75
7.8

0B
C

75
8.1

3B
C

75
7.7

7E
P

75
8.2

8E
P

75
8.7

0B
C

75
8.5

2B
C

75
8.0

8E
P

75
7.9

3E
P

75
8.3

4B
C

75
8.0

4B
C

75
7.6

4E
P

75
7.3

1E
P

75
7.7

8B
C

75
8.0

0B
C

75
7.5

8E
P

75
8.1

3E
P

75
8.5

7B
C

75
9.3

7B
C

75
8.9

2E
P

75
9.6

1E
P

76
0.0

8B
C

76
0.2

2E
P

76
0.6

9B
C

76
0.9

3B
C

76
0.4

4E
P

76
0.6

6E
P

76
1.1

4B
C

76
1.2

8B
C

76
0.7

9E
P

75
7.8

6

75
8.4

4

75
8.9

6

75
8.3

4

75
7.7

2

75
7.7

8

75
8.1

6

75
8.3

1

75
4.7

7E
P

75
4.9

0E
P

75
4.8

8E
P75

4.0
5E

P

75
4.4

0E
P

75
4.6

0E
P

75
4.6

1E
P75

4.8
0E

P

75
5.1

7E
P

75
5.3

9E
P

75
5.3

1E
P

75
5.2

9E
P

75
5.0

7E
P

75
5.0

6E
P

75
5.1

3E
P

75
5.4

2E
P

75
5.8

0E
P

75
6.0

2E
P

75
6.2

1E
P

75
6.8

2E
P

75
7.1

8E
P

75
7.4

8E
P

75
7.7

0E
P

75
7.5

8E
P

75
7.1

5E
P

75
6.2

4E
P

75
6.

58
EP

75
6.9

9E
P

75
7.0

6E
P75

7.
30

EP75
7.4

1E
P

75
7.5

3E
P

75
7.8

6E
P

75
7.9

6E
P

75
7.9

9E
P

75
7.8

1E
P

75
7.6

5E
P

75
7.6

5E
P

75
7.7

2E
P

75
7.8

7E
P

75
8.0

7E
P

75
8.2

5E
P75

8.6
4E

P

75
8.8

1E
P

75
8.8

8E
P75

9.2
9E

P

759.64EP

76
0.0

7E
P

76
0.2

0E
P

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.5

9B
C

76
0.1

1B
C

75
9.6

9B
C

75
9.3

6B
C

75
8.8

7B
C

75
8.5

7B
C

75
8.3

7B
C

75
8.1

9B
C

75
8.

10
BC

75
8.0

2B
C

75
8.2

9B
C

75
8.4

7B
C75

8.4
9B

C

75
8.5

3B
C

75
8.5

3B
C

758.66BC

758.88BC

759.12BC 75
8.6

75
8.5

75
8.5

75
8.3

75
8.3

75
8.1

75
7.9

75
7.9

76
0.

21
BC

76
0.2

0B
C

76
0.

25
BC

76
0.2

3B
C

76
0.

18
BC

75
9.6

0B
C

75
9.2

1B
C

75
8.9

8B
C

75
8.8

9B
C

75
8.8

2B
C

75
8.5

6E
P

75
8.6

3E
P

758.65EP

759.49EP

75
8.6

2E
P

75
8.6

6E
P 75

8.8
0E

P

75
9.0

5E
P

75
9.1

4E
P

75
9.2

2E
P

75
9.1

2E
P

75
9.5

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

75
9.6

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

759.59EP

75
9.6

2

75
8.8

8

75
8.8

3

75
9.2

6

75
9.0

2

75
8.7

4
75

8.3
5

75
8.0

1

75
7.7

8

75
7.5

8

75
7.5

8

75
7.6

4

75
8.2

975
8.4

5

75
8.3

2B
C

75
8.2

2B
C

75
8.1

6B
C

75
8.1

1B
C

75
7.9

0B
C

75
7.8

4B
C

75
7.6

8B
C

75
7.4

3B
C

75
7.3

0B
C

75
6.6

8B
C

75
9.3

8

75
9.3

8

75
9.1

6

75
8.3

2

75
8.3

4

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.0

75
9.4

758.07BC

75
7.2

3B
C

75
6.3

9B
C

75
5.7

5B
C

75
5.3

75
6.1

75
6.7

75
7.2

75
7.6

75
7.7

75
7.1

75
7.1

75
7.7

7B
C

75
7.4

4B
C

75
6.8

75
6.2

75
6.6

8B
C

75
6.3

2B
C

75
5.7

75
5.4

75
5.6

7B
C

75
5.5

8B
C

75
5.3

4B
C

75
5.2

75
5.8

275
5.3

3
75

5.2
9

75
5.0

9

75
5.1

6

75
5.5

6

75
5.3

0
75

4.8
9

75
4.7

9E
P

75
5.0

2

75
5.1

6

75
5.6

5

75
5.0

6E
P

75
5.4

0E
P

75
5.7

1E
P

75
5.9

7

75
6.2

2E
P

75
6.4

7
75

7.0
5

75
6.8

4E
P

75
7.5

1E
P

75
7.7

3

75
8.0

2E
P

75
8.2

6

75
8.6

6E
P

75
8.9

0

75
9.4

0E
P

75
9.6

5
75

9.2
0

75
8.9

9E
P

75
8.8

75
9.0

75
9.4

75
9.6

76
0.1

75
5.2

75
6.2

75
9.4

8

75
9.4

67
59

.51

75
9.3 75

9.0

75
9.3

75
9.5

2

75
9.3

75
9.3

75
9.1

75
9.3

75
9.2

75
7.2
75

7.3
75

7.8

75
7.6

75
7.975

9.2

75
9.375

9.3
75

9.2
75

9.4
75

9.3759.81
759.86

75
9.8

2
759.72

75
9.3

75
9.4

5

75
9.0

0

75
9.1

6

75
9.4

8

75
9.2

75
9.0

75
8.4

75
7.7

8
75

7.2
4

75
6.8

6

75
6.1

7

75
5.6

0

75
5.7

1
75

6.1
3

75
6.7

5

75
7.4

2 75
7.9

1
75

9.1
75

9.1

75
8.8

75
8.6

75
7.9

75
7.8

75
9.0

76
2.176

1.0

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.

62
BC

76
0.6

6B
C

76
0.1

7E
P

76
0.0

9E
P 76

0.1
2E

P76
0.6

6E
P

76
1.0

2B
C76

1.3
6

761.37
76

1.2
0

761.18

761.13BC

76
0.7

2E
P

76
1.1

76
0.9 76

1.0

760.0476
0.0

1

76
1.2

75
9.1

5
75

9.2
075

9.1
3

75
9.3

1

75
9.3

75
9.1

75
8.7

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.3

7

75
9.0

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
9.4

75
9.2

75
8.9

75
9.3

5
75

9.4
9

75
9.4

8

75
9.3

5

75
9.3

8
75

9.4
3

75
9.2

5

75
8.7

75
9.575

9.876
0.7

75
7.8

75
7.7

75
7.8

75
7.9

76
0.176

0.5

76
0.5
76

0.1
75

8.0
7

75
8.0

2

75
8.8

76
0.5

76
0.1

75
8.4

75
9.0

75
9.275

8.5

75
8.275

8.9

759.34BC

75
9.3

75
8.3

4

75
8.3

7

75
8.6

75
9.5

75
9.3

75
8.8

75
8.5

1
75

8.5
2

75
8.8

75
9.2

75
8.7

5

75
8.7

2

75
9.0

75
9.4

75
8.8

5

75
8.8

0

75
8.7

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.7

76
0.0

75
9.3

76
1.2

0

76
1.1

6

76
1.2

6

76
1.3

276
0.6

76
0.2

75
9.9

75
9.7

75
9.6

75
9.5

75
9.676

0.0
75

9.9

76
0.1

76
0.4

75
9.7

76
0.1

75
9.9

75
9.8

75
9.9

76
0.1

76
0.6

76
1.0

3

76
1.1

5

76
1.3

4

76
0.6

76
0.2

76
0.1

76
0.1

75
9.9

75
9.8

75
9.8

75
9.6

75
9.6

75
9.4

75
9.4

75
9.575

9.5

75
9.5

75
9.5

75
9.4

75
9.3

76
0.276

0.175
9.9

76
0.1

76
0.3

76
0.3

75
8.1

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.4

8

75
9.5

6

75
9.2

0

75
9.0

7

75
7.9

75
8.1
75

7.9
7

75
7.3

1

75
6.8

5

75
5.6

1

75
7.5

75
7.9

75
8.0

75
8.3

75
8.0

75
8.1

75
8.0

75
7.9

75
7.8

8

75
7.3

8

75
6.7

4

75
5.5

7

75
9.0

75
9.6

575
9.4

9

75
9.4

5

75
9.6

2

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
9.6

75
9.2

75
9.5

75
9.6

75
9.5
75

9.4
75

9.1 75
8.9

75
8.7

75
8.4

75
7.2

75
8.9

75
8.8

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
9.3

76
0.9

75
9.575

9.5
75

9.9
76

0.075
9.976

0.1
75

9.9

76
0.0

75
9.9

76
0.2

75
9.075
9.3

75
9.5

75
9.4

75
9.5

3

75
9.3

5

75
9.4

5

75
9.4

2

75
9.3

7

75
9.3

9

75
9.5

5

75
9.5

8

75
9.4

8

75
9.4

5

75
9.5

4

75
9.5

75
9.6

F.
I.P

. 1
/2

"

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"
0.

97
' N

 &
 O

N
 L

IN
E

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"
F.

I.R
. 9

/1
6"

A
T 

C
O

R
N

ER

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

C ONTARIO STREET

W. LARAWAY ROAD

L

50
.0

0'

33
.0

0'

60.00'

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

61
.6

8
IN

V 
75

6.
91

 S
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
V 

75
6.

05
 E

&W
 1

5"
 H

D
PE

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

60
.4

0
IN

V 
75

8.
08

 S
W

 1
2"

 R
C

P
IN

V 
75

7.
92

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#3

SW
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
56

.6
1 

N
AV

D
88

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

IT
C

H

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

57

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

56

G
R

AV
EL

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

G
R

AV
EL

G
R

AV
EL

F/
F 

75
9.

53

F/
F 

76
1.

40
12

" R
C

P 
FE

S
IN

V 
75

8.
29

BR
IC

K
PI

LL
AR

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#2

N
E 

BO
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
60

.4
0 

N
AV

D
88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#1

N
W

 B
O

LT
 O

N
 F

H
EL

EV
. 7

64
.1

1 
N

AV
D

88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#4

SE
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
54

.0
2 

N
AV

D
88

C
H

AI
N

LI
N

K
FE

N
C

E

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
BR

IC
K 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

79.7'

12
5.

0'

125.1'

50
.2

'

58.5'

14
.4

'

10
.1'

14.3'

8.
5' 125.0'

20
4.

9'

41.8'

41.6'

89
.7

'

89
.7

'

83.6'

82.5'

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E
8.

87
' S

 &
 1

.5
7'

 E

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

G
/F

 7
61

.2
8

G
/F

 7
59

.4
9

G
/F

 7
59

.5
3

G
AT

E

G
AT

E

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

55
.5

5

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

8
IN

LE
T

R
IM

 7
57

.2
4

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.2

3

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

5
IN

V 
75

3.
26

 1
0"

 R
C

P
75

3.
01

 1
0"

 IR
O

N

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

60
.4

6
IN

V 
75

7.
41

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
V 

75
7.

34
 S

 1
2"

 R
C

P

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

1
IN

V 
75

4.
96

 S
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.2

2
IN

V 
75

4.
52

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
57

.9
9

IN
V 

74
8.

06
 N

E&
S

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
61

.2
5

IN
V 

75
6.

58
 N

&W

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
56

.4
1

IN
V 

74
2.

29
 E

&W

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
55

.1
0

IN
V 

74
1.

24
 N

&E
&W

SA
N

 M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.7

8
IN

V 
75

3.
45

 S
E

2"
 P

VC
IN

V 
75

9.
10

2"
 P

VC
IN

V 
75

9.
04

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.2

0
IN

V 
75

5.
39

 N
 1

2"
 C

M
P

IN
V 

75
5.

34
 E

&W
 1

8"
 C

M
P

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
3.

56

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
6.

15 18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
0.

82

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
2.

13

12
" R

C
P 

FE
S

IN
V 

75
7.

74
N

IC
O

R
M

AR
KE

R

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

12
"

12
"

W
O

O
D

R
ET

AI
N

IN
G

W
AL

L

W
AL

LSI
G

N

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

F/
F 

75
9.

55

T/
F 

75
9.

52

T/
F 

76
1.

46

VA
LV

E 
VA

U
LT

R
IM

 7
55

.9
4

T/
PI

PE
 7

47
.7

6

6" 6"

6"

6"

6"

6" 6"
6"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"10
"

10
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
" 12

"

12
"

15
"

VA
LV

E 
VA

U
LT

R
IM

 7
53

.1
2

T/
PI

PE
 7

47
.7

6

O
LD

ST
O

C
KP

IL
E

O
LD

ST
O

C
KP

IL
E

O
LD

ST
O

C
KP

IL
E

2 
ST

O
R

Y 
BL

O
C

K 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

CL
SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-35-12

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
W

ES
T 

33
0 

FE
ET

 O
F 

TH
E 

EA
ST

 6
60

 F
EE

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
EA

ST
 1

/2
 O

F 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

W
ES

T 
1/

4 
O

F 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 2
7-

35
-1

2

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

EA
ST

 6
60

 F
EE

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
EA

ST
 1

/2
 O

F 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

W
ES

T 
1/

4 
O

F 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 2
7-

35
-1

2

NORTH LINE OF SOUTH 660 FEET OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-35-12

SOUTH LINE OF ONTARIO STREET AS MONUMENTED

NORTH LINE OF LARAWAY ROAD    AS MONUMENTED

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

6"

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"

6"

6"

6"6
"

6"

8"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"12

"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"12

"

12
"

12
" 12
"

15
"

15
"

18
"

20
"

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 G

R
AV

EL
TO

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 G

R
AV

EL
TO

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D

2

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

3
0
'

1
5
'

0
3
0
'

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

R
EM

O
VE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

U
R

B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
762

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
757

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:



75
7.9

6E
P

75
7.9

9E
P

75
7.8

1E
P

75
8.2

5E
P75

8.6
4E

P
75

8.8
8E

P

75
8.5

7B
C

75
8.1

9B
C 75

8.0
2B

C
75

8.2
9B

C

76
0.2

0B
C

76
0.2

3B
C

75
8.8

9B
C

75
8.5

6E
P

75
8.6

2E
P

75
9.0

5E
P

75
9.2

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.6

6B
C

76
0.1

7E
P

76
0.1

2E
P

F.
I.P

. 1
/2

"

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"
0.

97
' N

 &
 O

N
 L

IN
E

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"
F.

I.R
. 9

/1
6"

A
T 

C
O

R
N

ER

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

C ONTARIO STREET

W. LARAWAY ROAD

L

50
.0

0'

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#3

SW
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
56

.6
1 

N
AV

D
88

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

IT
C

H

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

57

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

56

G
R

AV
EL

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

G
R

AV
EL

G
R

AV
EL

F/
F 

75
9.

53

F/
F 

76
1.

40

BR
IC

K
PI

LL
AR

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#2

N
E 

BO
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
60

.4
0 

N
AV

D
88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#1

N
W

 B
O

LT
 O

N
 F

H
EL

EV
. 7

64
.1

1 
N

AV
D

88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#4

SE
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
54

.0
2 

N
AV

D
88

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
BR

IC
K 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

79.7'

12
5.

0'

125.1'

50
.2

'

58.5'

14
.4

'

10
.1'

14.3'

8.
5' 125.0'

20
4.

9'

41.8'

41.6'

89
.7

'

89
.7

'

83.6'

82.5'

G
/F

 7
61

.2
8

G
/F

 7
59

.4
9

G
/F

 7
59

.5
3

G
AT

E

G
AT

E

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.2

0
IN

V 
75

5.
39

 N
 1

2"
 C

M
P

IN
V 

75
5.

34
 E

&W
 1

8"
 C

M
P

N
IC

O
R

M
AR

KE
R

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

12
"

12
"

W
AL

LSI
G

N

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

F/
F 

75
9.

55

T/
F 

75
9.

52

T/
F 

76
1.

46

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"
6"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"10
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
" 12

"

12
"

15
"

2 
ST

O
R

Y 
BL

O
C

K 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

CL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B
30

.6
9'

39
.7

2'

30
.9

5'

14
.0

0'

18
.0

0'

9.00'

18.00'

9.
00

'

9.
00

'

18.00'

9.
00

'

18.00'

R21.50'

R2
1.

50
'

R21.50'

5'

5'

5'

5'

25.32'

14
.0

0'

9.
00

'

18.00'

R21
.50

'

R12.00'

38.00'
30

.0
2'

30
.9

1'

35.00'5.00'

75.00'

35.00'

75.00'

5.00'

B6 CURB (TYP.)

21.05'

25.80'

25.78'

5.82'

5.87'

1.25'

5.65'

5.82'

75
8.8

0
75

8.7
0

759.40

75
9.2

0

75
8.

00

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50
FE

N
C

E 
AN

D
 G

AR
BA

G
E

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E 

10
' X

 1
2'

3

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

3
0
'

1
5
'

0
3
0
'

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

REPLACE WITH
DEPRESSED CURB

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 T

O
TA

L 
38

O
FF

IC
E 

5,
00

0 
SQ

 F
T 

(A
T 

25
0)

 2
0 

SP
AC

ES
W

AR
EH

O
U

SE
 1

0,
85

2 
SQ

 F
T 

(3
 S

PA
C

ES
 +

 1
 E

M
PL

O
YE

E)
R

EP
AI

R
 S

H
O

P 
LI

G
H

T 
IN

D
U

ST
R

Y 
- 7

,0
00

 S
Q

 F
T 

(A
T 

2 
PE

R
 1

,0
00

) 1
4 

SP
AC

ES
TO

TA
L 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 3

8 
SP

AC
ES

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOMETRIC PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:



75
7.9

6E
P

75
7.9

9E
P

75
7.8

1E
P

75
8.2

5E
P75

8.6
4E

P
75

8.8
8E

P

75
8.5

7B
C

75
8.1

9B
C 75

8.0
2B

C
75

8.2
9B

C

76
0.2

0B
C

76
0.2

3B
C

75
8.8

9B
C

75
8.5

6E
P

75
8.6

2E
P

75
9.0

5E
P

75
9.2

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.6

6B
C

76
0.1

7E
P

76
0.1

2E
P

F.
I.P

. 1
/2

"

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"
0.

97
' N

 &
 O

N
 L

IN
E

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"
F.

I.R
. 9

/1
6"

A
T 

C
O

R
N

ER

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"

C ONTARIO STREET

W. LARAWAY ROAD

L

50
.0

0'

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

61
.6

8
IN

V 
75

6.
91

 S
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
V 

75
6.

05
 E

&W
 1

5"
 H

D
PE

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

60
.4

0
IN

V 
75

8.
08

 S
W

 1
2"

 R
C

P
IN

V 
75

7.
92

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#3

SW
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
56

.6
1 

N
AV

D
88

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

IT
C

H

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

57

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

56

G
R

AV
EL

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

G
R

AV
EL

G
R

AV
EL

F/
F 

75
9.

53

F/
F 

76
1.

40
12

" R
C

P 
FE

S
IN

V 
75

8.
29

BR
IC

K
PI

LL
AR

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#2

N
E 

BO
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
60

.4
0 

N
AV

D
88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#1

N
W

 B
O

LT
 O

N
 F

H
EL

EV
. 7

64
.1

1 
N

AV
D

88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#4

SE
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
54

.0
2 

N
AV

D
88

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
BR

IC
K 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

G
/F

 7
61

.2
8

G
/F

 7
59

.4
9

G
/F

 7
59

.5
3

G
AT

E

G
AT

E

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

55
.5

5

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

8
IN

LE
T

R
IM

 7
57

.2
4

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.2

3

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

5
IN

V 
75

3.
26

 1
0"

 R
C

P
75

3.
01

 1
0"

 IR
O

N

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

60
.4

6
IN

V 
75

7.
41

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
V 

75
7.

34
 S

 1
2"

 R
C

P

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

1
IN

V 
75

4.
96

 S
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.2

2
IN

V 
75

4.
52

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
57

.9
9

IN
V 

74
8.

06
 N

E&
S

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
61

.2
5

IN
V 

75
6.

58
 N

&W

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
56

.4
1

IN
V 

74
2.

29
 E

&W

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
55

.1
0

IN
V 

74
1.

24
 N

&E
&W

SA
N

 M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.7

8
IN

V 
75

3.
45

 S
E

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.2

0
IN

V 
75

5.
39

 N
 1

2"
 C

M
P

IN
V 

75
5.

34
 E

&W
 1

8"
 C

M
P

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
3.

56

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
6.

15 18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
0.

82

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
2.

13

12
" R

C
P 

FE
S

IN
V 

75
7.

74
N

IC
O

R
M

AR
KE

R

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

12
"

12
"

W
AL

LSI
G

N

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

F/
F 

75
9.

55

T/
F 

75
9.

52

T/
F 

76
1.

46

VA
LV

E 
VA

U
LT

R
IM

 7
55

.9
4

T/
PI

PE
 7

47
.7

6

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"
6"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"10
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
" 12

"

12
"

15
"

VA
LV

E 
VA

U
LT

R
IM

 7
53

.1
2

T/
PI

PE
 7

47
.7

6CL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

B6 CURB (TYP.)

75
8.8

0
75

8.7
0

759.40

75
9.2

0

75
8.

00

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50
FE

N
C

E 
AN

D
 G

AR
BA

G
E

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E 

10
' X

 1
2'

4

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

2
0
'

1
0
'

0
2
0
'

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

C
B 

TY
 C

, 2
'Ø

R
IM

 7
59

.0
0

IN
V 

75
4.

17

C
B 

TY
 C

, 2
'Ø

R
IM

 7
59

.5
0

IN
V 

75
4.

07

12
" R

C
P

38
 L

F 
@

 0
.2

5%

12
" R

C
P

32
6 

LF
 @

 0
.2

5%

FE
S

IN
V 

75
3.

25

12
" R

C
P

14
0 

LF
 @

0.
25

%

C
B 

TY
 C

, 2
'Ø

R
IM

 7
57

.8
0

IN
V7

52
.8

7

12
" R

C
P

16
7 

LF
 @

 0
.2

5%

5'
 D

IA
 M

AN
H

O
LE

W
/R

ES
TR

IC
TO

R
R

IM
 7

58
.0

0
IN

V 
75

2.
28

12
" F

ES
IN

V 
75

2.
20

12
" R

C
P

31
 L

F 
@

 0
.2

7%

12
" R

C
P

46
 L

F 
@

 3
.6

3%

12
" R

C
P

26
 L

F 
@

 0
.2

5%

C
B 

TY
 C

, 2
'Ø

R
IM

 7
55

.0
0

IN
V 

75
2.

47

IN
LE

T 
TY

 A
, 2

'Ø
R

IM
 7

55
.2

9
IN

V 
75

2.
54

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
TO

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

6"
 D

IP
 W

/V
AL

VE
 B

O
X

4'
 D

IA
 C

AT
C

H
 B

AS
IN

R
IM

 7
58

.0
0

IN
V 

75
2.

45

12
" R

C
P

66
 L

F 
@

 0
.2

5%

12
" F

ES
IN

V 
75

0.
80

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.5

0
IN

V 
75

4.
60

12
" R

C
P

17
3 

LF
 @

0.
25

%

"K
N

O
X 

BO
X"

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N

N
O

TE
 :

AL
L 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
TO

 B
E 

C
O

N
N

EC
TE

D
 T

O
 P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 S

TO
R

M
SE

W
ER

 S
YS

TE
M

.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITIES PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:



76
1.0

76
1.1

76
0.0

75
8.5

75
8.8

75
8.9

76
1.4 76

1.1

76
1.7

76
1.9

76
1.1

76
0.7

76
1.7

76
1.4

76
1.3

76
1.3

76
1.376

0.9

76
0.6

76
1.2

76
0.5

76
0.1

75
9.5

75
9.5

75
8.9

75
9.4

75
9.3

75
9.1

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
9.275

9.4

75
9.4

75
9.3

75
9.2

75
9.3

75
9.2 75

9.3 75
9.1

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.8

75
8.975

8.9

75
8.9

75
9.1

75
9.0

75
9.1

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
9.1

75
8.8

75
9.2

75
8.9

76
0.3

76
0.5

76
1.4

76
0.0

76
0.2 76

0.4

76
1.2

75
9.5

76
3.2

76
5.5

76
2.4

75
8.5

76
1.8

76
1.1

75
9.6

75
9.2

75
9.6

75
9.1

75
8.6

75
9.5

76
0.1 76

0.2

76
2.4

75
9.7

75
9.0 75

9.3
75

8.4
75

8.6

75
9.0

75
9.5

75
9.4

75
8.975

8.8

75
8.8

76
0.876

0.6

75
8.9

76
5.6

76
1.2

76
1.075

9.6
76

0.6

76
0.4

76
0.9

76
1.5

75
8.8

76
0.5

75
9.8

76
0.3

76
1.076

0.3

76
0.1

76
0.3

75
9.5

76
0.6

76
0.5

75
9.6

76
0.8

75
9.8

75
9.5

75
9.7

76
0.2

75
9.4

75
9.676

0.3

76
0.7

76
2.4

76
0.6

76
3.2

76
2.4

76
2.4

76
2.876

2.576
5.0

76
4.9

76
4.2

76
1.5

76
3.8

76
0.5

76
1.2

76
1.5

76
3.4

76
1.7

76
3.3

76
1.3

76
3.4

76
3.2

76
0.5

76
2.3

75
9.9

76
2.0

76
2.9

76
0.0

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
8.7

75
8.2

75
9.1

76
0.3

76
1.3

75
8.5

75
9.2

75
9.4

75
9.2

75
8.6

75
8.2

75
8.1

75
9.9

75
9.8

75
8.7

75
7.9

75
8.2

75
8.5

75
8.6

75
8.2

75
8.5

75
8.9

75
7.9

75
9.3 75

7.7

75
8.1 75

7.5
75

8.0

75
7.6

75
6.7

75
8.6

75
8.2

75
6.775

7.8

75
6.9

75
7.5

75
7.4

75
6.6

75
7.3 75

6.5

75
6.4

75
7.6

75
6.875

7.1

75
6.2

75
6.4

75
6.8

75
6.2

75
5.475

5.7
75

5.4

75
4.8

75
4.6

75
4.2

75
3.9

75
2.4

75
3.8

75
4.4

75
2.4

75
5.0

75
6.2

75
5.3

75
5.0

75
4.575

2.875
2.075

3.4

75
5.5

75
4.8

75
5.7

75
5.4

75
3.775

2.675
3.6

75
7.4

75
8.7

75
9.5

75
8.9

75
7.6

75
6.8

75
5.8

75
5.6

75
6.075

5.0

75
3.775

4.0

75
6.7

75
8.6

75
8.975

9.4

75
8.9

75
8.3

75
7.6

75
5.2

75
3.7

75
4.5

75
5.8

75
6.675

5.275
6.075

5.775
5.4

75
3.2

75
7.1

75
7.5

75
7.8

75
7.9 75

8.8

75
7.5

75
7.9

75
8.9

75
8.7 75

8.9

75
9.9

75
9.175

9.275
9.0

75
8.2

75
7.7

75
7.5

75
8.2

75
7.7

75
7.7

75
7.975

8.2

75
8.1

75
8.1

75
8.5

75
9.0

75
9.6

76
0.8 75

9.4

75
9.1

75
8.8

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
8.9

75
9.0

75
9.1

75
8.8

75
8.3 75

7.8

75
7.3

75
7.8

75
7.9

75
8.9

75
8.8

75
8.8

75
7.9

75
7.9

75
8.7

75
8.1

75
8.5

76
0.0

75
7.8

75
9.1

75
8.4

75
7.9

75
7.9

76
1.4

75
9.3

75
8.9

76
0.4

76
0.5

75
9.8

76
0.9

75
9.4

75
8.5

75
8.5

75
8.9

76
0.4

76
1.6 76

1.3

76
1.3

6B
C

76
0.9

2E
P

76
0.7

3E
P

76
1.1

7B
C

76
1.0

3B
C

76
0.5

6E
P

76
0.3

3E
P

76
0.7

8B
C

76
0.1

0B
C

75
9.6

1E
P

75
8.8

9E
P

75
9.3

0B
C

75
8.6

1B
C

75
8.1

5E
P

75
7.5

6E
P

75
8.0

2B
C

75
7.8

1B
C

75
7.3

8E
P

75
7.5

6E
P

75
7.9

8B
C

75
8.2

3B
C

75
7.8

0E
P75

7.9
3E

P

75
8.4

1B
C

75
8.3

3

75
7.9

3

75
7.7

1

75
7.6

1

75
8.3

9

75
8.9

9

75
9.8

3

76
0.5

7

76
0.8

6

76
0.9

6

76
1.0

7

75
7.8

3B
C

75
7.4

7E
P

75
7.8

8B
C

75
7.9

8B
C

75
7.5

5E
P

75
7.7

2E
P

75
8.1

3B
C

75
8.1

3B
C

75
7.6

9E
P

75
8.2

3E
P

75
8.8

4B
C

75
9.4

1B
C

75
8.9

2E
P

75
8.2

6E
P

75
8.8

2B
C

75
8.6

6B
C

75
8.1

2E
P

75
7.7

3E
P

75
8.2

6B
C

75
7.7

5B
C

75
7.2

8E
P

75
7.7

3B
C

75
7.9

4B
C

75
7.5

2E
P

75
7.6

4E
P

75
8.0

7B
C

75
8.4

8B
C

75
8.0

6E
P

75
8.4

2E
P

75
8.7

9B
C

75
9.1

2E
P

75
9.5

2B
C

75
8.4

5B
C

75
8.0

2E
P

75
7.2

9E
P

75
7.7

3B
C

75
7.8

3B
C

75
7.3

2E
P

75
7.8

0B
C

75
8.1

3B
C

75
7.7

7E
P

75
8.2

8E
P

75
8.7

0B
C

75
8.5

2B
C

75
8.0

8E
P

75
7.9

3E
P

75
8.3

4B
C

75
8.0

4B
C

75
7.6

4E
P

75
7.3

1E
P

75
7.7

8B
C

75
8.0

0B
C

75
7.5

8E
P

75
8.1

3E
P

75
8.5

7B
C

75
9.3

7B
C

75
8.9

2E
P

75
9.6

1E
P

76
0.0

8B
C

76
0.2

2E
P

76
0.6

9B
C

76
0.9

3B
C

76
0.4

4E
P

76
0.6

6E
P

76
1.1

4B
C

76
1.2

8B
C

76
0.7

9E
P

75
7.8

6

75
8.4

4

75
8.9

6

75
8.3

4

75
7.7

2

75
7.7

8

75
8.1

6

75
8.3

1

75
4.7

7E
P

75
4.9

0E
P

75
4.8

8E
P75

4.0
5E

P

75
4.4

0E
P

75
4.6

0E
P

75
4.6

1E
P75

4.8
0E

P

75
5.1

7E
P

75
5.3

9E
P

75
5.3

1E
P

75
5.2

9E
P

75
5.0

7E
P

75
5.0

6E
P

75
5.1

3E
P

75
5.4

2E
P

75
5.8

0E
P

75
6.0

2E
P

75
6.2

1E
P

75
6.8

2E
P

75
7.1

8E
P

75
7.4

8E
P

75
7.7

0E
P

75
7.5

8E
P

75
7.1

5E
P

75
6.2

4E
P

75
6.

58
EP

75
6.9

9E
P

75
7.0

6E
P75

7.
30

EP75
7.4

1E
P

75
7.5

3E
P

75
7.8

6E
P

75
7.9

6E
P

75
7.9

9E
P

75
7.8

1E
P

75
7.6

5E
P

75
7.6

5E
P

75
7.7

2E
P

75
7.8

7E
P

75
8.0

7E
P

75
8.2

5E
P75

8.6
4E

P

75
8.8

1E
P

75
8.8

8E
P75

9.2
9E

P

759.64EP

76
0.0

7E
P

76
0.2

0E
P

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.5

9B
C

76
0.1

1B
C

75
9.6

9B
C

75
9.3

6B
C

75
8.8

7B
C

75
8.5

7B
C

75
8.3

7B
C

75
8.1

9B
C

75
8.

10
BC

75
8.0

2B
C

75
8.2

9B
C

75
8.4

7B
C75

8.4
9B

C

75
8.5

3B
C

75
8.5

3B
C

758.66BC

758.88BC

759.12BC 75
8.6

75
8.5

75
8.5

75
8.3

75
8.3

75
8.1

75
7.9

75
7.9

76
0.

21
BC

76
0.2

0B
C

76
0.

25
BC

76
0.2

3B
C

76
0.

18
BC

75
9.6

0B
C

75
9.2

1B
C

75
8.9

8B
C

75
8.8

9B
C

75
8.8

2B
C

75
8.5

6E
P

75
8.6

3E
P

758.65EP

759.49EP

75
8.6

2E
P

75
8.6

6E
P 75

8.8
0E

P

75
9.0

5E
P

75
9.1

4E
P

75
9.2

2E
P

75
9.1

2E
P

75
9.5

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

75
9.6

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

759.59EP

75
9.6

2

75
8.8

8

75
8.8

3

75
9.2

6

75
9.0

2

75
8.7

4
75

8.3
5

75
8.0

1

75
7.7

8

75
7.5

8

75
7.5

8

75
7.6

4

75
8.2

975
8.4

5

75
8.3

2B
C

75
8.2

2B
C

75
8.1

6B
C

75
8.1

1B
C

75
7.9

0B
C

75
7.8

4B
C

75
7.6

8B
C

75
7.4

3B
C

75
7.3

0B
C

75
6.6

8B
C

75
9.3

8

75
9.3

8

75
9.1

6

75
8.3

2

75
8.3

4

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.0

75
9.4

758.07BC

75
7.2

3B
C

75
6.3

9B
C

75
5.7

5B
C

75
5.3

75
6.1

75
6.7

75
7.2

75
7.6

75
7.7

75
7.1

75
7.1

75
7.7

7B
C

75
7.4

4B
C

75
6.8

75
6.2

75
6.6

8B
C

75
6.3

2B
C

75
5.7

75
5.4

75
5.6

7B
C

75
5.5

8B
C

75
5.3

4B
C

75
5.2

75
5.8

275
5.3

3
75

5.2
9

75
5.0

9

75
5.1

6

75
5.5

6

75
5.3

0
75

4.8
9

75
4.7

9E
P

75
5.0

2

75
5.1

6

75
5.6

5

75
5.0

6E
P

75
5.4

0E
P

75
5.7

1E
P

75
5.9

7

75
6.2

2E
P

75
6.4

7
75

7.0
5

75
6.8

4E
P

75
7.5

1E
P

75
7.7

3

75
8.0

2E
P

75
8.2

6

75
8.6

6E
P

75
8.9

0

75
9.4

0E
P

75
9.6

5
75

9.2
0

75
8.9

9E
P

75
8.8

75
9.0

75
9.4

75
9.6

76
0.1

75
5.2

75
6.2

75
9.4

8

75
9.4

67
59

.51

75
9.3 75

9.0

75
9.3

75
9.5

2

75
9.3

75
9.3

75
9.1

75
9.3

75
9.2

75
7.2
75

7.3
75

7.8

75
7.6

75
7.975

9.2

75
9.375

9.3
75

9.2
75

9.4
75

9.3759.81
759.86

75
9.8

2
759.72

75
9.3

75
9.4

5

75
9.0

0

75
9.1

6

75
9.4

8

75
9.2

75
9.0

75
8.4

75
7.7

8
75

7.2
4

75
6.8

6

75
6.1

7

75
5.6

0

75
5.7

1
75

6.1
3

75
6.7

5

75
7.4

2 75
7.9

1
75

9.1
75

9.1

75
8.8

75
8.6

75
7.9

75
7.8

75
9.0

76
2.176

1.0

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.

62
BC

76
0.6

6B
C

76
0.1

7E
P

76
0.0

9E
P 76

0.1
2E

P76
0.6

6E
P

76
1.0

2B
C76

1.3
6

761.37
76

1.2
0

761.18

761.13BC

76
0.7

2E
P

76
1.1

76
0.9 76

1.0

760.0476
0.0

1

76
1.2

75
9.1

5
75

9.2
075

9.1
3

75
9.3

1

75
9.3

75
9.1

75
8.7

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.3

7

75
9.0

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
9.4

75
9.2

75
8.9

75
9.3

5
75

9.4
9

75
9.4

8

75
9.3

5

75
9.3

8
75

9.4
3

75
9.2

5

75
8.7

75
9.575

9.876
0.7

75
7.8

75
7.7

75
7.8

75
7.9

76
0.176

0.5

76
0.5
76

0.1
75

8.0
7

75
8.0

2

75
8.8

76
0.5

76
0.1

75
8.4

75
9.0

75
9.275

8.5

75
8.275

8.9

759.34BC

75
9.3

75
8.3

4

75
8.3

7

75
8.6

75
9.5

75
9.3

75
8.8

75
8.5

1
75

8.5
2

75
8.8

75
9.2

75
8.7

5

75
8.7

2

75
9.0

75
9.4

75
8.8

5

75
8.8

0

75
8.7

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.7

76
0.0

75
9.3

76
1.2

0

76
1.1

6

76
1.2

6

76
1.3

276
0.6

76
0.2

75
9.9

75
9.7

75
9.6

75
9.5

75
9.676

0.0
75

9.9

76
0.1

76
0.4

75
9.7

76
0.1

75
9.9

75
9.8

75
9.9

76
0.1

76
0.6

76
1.0

3

76
1.1

5

76
1.3

4

76
0.6

76
0.2

76
0.1

76
0.1

75
9.9

75
9.8

75
9.8

75
9.6

75
9.6

75
9.4

75
9.4

75
9.575

9.5

75
9.5

75
9.5

75
9.4

75
9.3

76
0.276

0.175
9.9

76
0.1

76
0.3

76
0.3

75
8.1

75
9.2

75
9.2

75
9.4

8

75
9.5

6

75
9.2

0

75
9.0

7

75
7.9

75
8.1
75

7.9
7

75
7.3

1

75
6.8

5

75
5.6

1

75
7.5

75
7.9

75
8.0

75
8.3

75
8.0

75
8.1

75
8.0

75
7.9

75
7.8

8

75
7.3

8

75
6.7

4

75
5.5

7

75
9.0

75
9.6

575
9.4

9

75
9.4

5

75
9.6

2

75
9.3

75
9.4

75
9.6

75
9.2

75
9.5

75
9.6

75
9.5
75

9.4
75

9.1 75
8.9

75
8.7

75
8.4

75
7.2

75
8.9

75
8.8

75
9.0

75
9.2

75
9.3

76
0.9

75
9.575

9.5
75

9.9
76

0.075
9.976

0.1
75

9.9

76
0.0

75
9.9

76
0.2

75
9.075
9.3

75
9.5

75
9.4

75
9.5

3

75
9.3

5

75
9.4

5

75
9.4

2

75
9.3

7

75
9.3

9

75
9.5

5

75
9.5

8

75
9.4

8

75
9.4

5

75
9.5

4

75
9.5

75
9.6

F.
I.P

. 1
/2

"

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"
0.

97
' N

 &
 O

N
 L

IN
E

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"
F.

I.R
. 9

/1
6"

A
T 

C
O

R
N

ER

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"

C ONTARIO STREET

W. LARAWAY ROAD

L

50
.0

0'

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

61
.6

8
IN

V 
75

6.
91

 S
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
V 

75
6.

05
 E

&W
 1

5"
 H

D
PE

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

60
.4

0
IN

V 
75

8.
08

 S
W

 1
2"

 R
C

P
IN

V 
75

7.
92

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#3

SW
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
56

.6
1 

N
AV

D
88

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

IT
C

H

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

57

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

56

G
R

AV
EL

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

G
R

AV
EL

G
R

AV
EL

F/
F 

75
9.

53

F/
F 

76
1.

40
12

" R
C

P 
FE

S
IN

V 
75

8.
29

BR
IC

K
PI

LL
AR

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#2

N
E 

BO
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
60

.4
0 

N
AV

D
88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#1

N
W

 B
O

LT
 O

N
 F

H
EL

EV
. 7

64
.1

1 
N

AV
D

88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#4

SE
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
54

.0
2 

N
AV

D
88

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
BR

IC
K 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

G
/F

 7
61

.2
8

G
/F

 7
59

.4
9

G
/F

 7
59

.5
3

G
AT

E

G
AT

E

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

55
.5

5

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

8
IN

LE
T

R
IM

 7
57

.2
4

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.2

3

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

5
IN

V 
75

3.
26

 1
0"

 R
C

P
75

3.
01

 1
0"

 IR
O

N

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

60
.4

6
IN

V 
75

7.
41

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
V 

75
7.

34
 S

 1
2"

 R
C

P

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.3

1
IN

V 
75

4.
96

 S
 1

2"
 R

C
P

IN
LE

T
R

IM
 7

57
.2

2
IN

V 
75

4.
52

 N
 1

2"
 R

C
P

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
57

.9
9

IN
V 

74
8.

06
 N

E&
S

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
61

.2
5

IN
V 

75
6.

58
 N

&W

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
56

.4
1

IN
V 

74
2.

29
 E

&W

SA
N

. M
H

R
IM

 7
55

.1
0

IN
V 

74
1.

24
 N

&E
&W

SA
N

 M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.7

8
IN

V 
75

3.
45

 S
E

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.2

0
IN

V 
75

5.
39

 N
 1

2"
 C

M
P

IN
V 

75
5.

34
 E

&W
 1

8"
 C

M
P

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
3.

56

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
6.

15 18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
0.

82

18
" C

M
P

IN
V 

75
2.

13

12
" R

C
P 

FE
S

IN
V 

75
7.

74
N

IC
O

R
M

AR
KE

R

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

12
"

12
"

W
AL

LSI
G

N

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

F/
F 

75
9.

55

T/
F 

75
9.

52

T/
F 

76
1.

46

VA
LV

E 
VA

U
LT

R
IM

 7
55

.9
4

T/
PI

PE
 7

47
.7

6

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"
6"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"10
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
" 12

"

12
"

15
"

VA
LV

E 
VA

U
LT

R
IM

 7
53

.1
2

T/
PI

PE
 7

47
.7

6CL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B75
8.

5
75

7

75
8.

5

75
6

76
0

75
9

75
9

75
8

B6 CURB (TYP.)
75

9

75
8 

H
W

L
75

7

75
8

75
6

75
8

75
6

75
7

14
.5

0'

75
5

75
4

75
3

75
8 

H
W

L

75
8.8

0
75

8.7
0

759.40

75
9.2

0

75
8.

00

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

76
1

75
8.

50

75
8.

50

75
8.

50
FE

N
C

E 
AN

D
 G

AR
BA

G
E

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E 

10
' X

 1
2'

5

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

3
0
'

1
5
'

0
3
0
'

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

IN
LE

T 
SE

D
IM

EN
T

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
(T

YP
IC

AL
)

SI
LT

 F
EN

C
E

(T
YP

IC
AL

)
TR

EE
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

(T
YP

IC
AL

)

R
IM

 7
59

.0
0

R
IM

 7
59

.5
0

R
IM

 7
57

.5
0

R
IM

 7
57

.8
0

R
IM

 7
58

.0
0

IN
V 

75
2.

20

R
IM

 7
55

.2
9

R
IM

 7
55

.0
0

R
IM

 7
55

.0
0

IN
V 

75
3.

25

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 IM

PE
R

VI
O

U
S 

AR
EA

G
R

AV
EL

31
,0

05
 S

F
PA

R
KI

N
G

20
,4

82
 S

F
BU

IL
D

IN
G

24
,4

28
 S

F
C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

4,
58

1 
SF

TO
TA

L
80

,4
96

 S
F

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 IM

PE
R

VI
O

U
S 

AR
EA

PA
R

KI
N

G
98

,6
04

 S
F

BU
IL

D
IN

G
24

,4
28

 S
F

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
4,

65
7 

SF
TO

TA
L

12
7,

68
9 

SF

N
EW

 N
EW

 IM
PE

R
VI

O
U

S 
AR

EA
12

7,
68

9 
- 8

0,
49

6 
= 

47
,1

93
 S

F

C
U

T 
BC

 A
S 

N
EE

D
ED

 T
O

PR
O

VI
D

E 
O

VE
R

FL
O

W
R

O
U

TE
 A

T 
75

8.
00

IN
V 

75
0.

80

C
U

T 
BC

 A
S 

N
EE

D
ED

 T
O

PR
O

VI
D

E 
O

VE
R

FL
O

W
R

O
U

TE
 A

T 
75

8.
00

W
AL

L 
TO

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D
TO

 P
R

O
VI

D
E 

O
VE

R
FL

O
W

R
O

U
TE

 A
T 

75
8.

00

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
762

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
757

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
761

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
759

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
758

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:



75
7.9

6E
P

75
7.9

9E
P

75
7.8

1E
P

75
8.2

5E
P75

8.6
4E

P
75

8.8
8E

P

75
8.5

7B
C

75
8.1

9B
C 75

8.0
2B

C
75

8.2
9B

C

76
0.2

0B
C

76
0.2

3B
C

75
8.8

9B
C

75
8.5

6E
P

75
8.6

2E
P

75
9.0

5E
P

75
9.2

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.6

6B
C

76
0.1

7E
P

76
0.1

2E
P

F.
I.P

. 1
/2

"

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"
0.

97
' N

 &
 O

N
 L

IN
E

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"
F.

I.R
. 9

/1
6"

A
T 

C
O

R
N

ER

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

C ONTARIO STREET

W. LARAWAY ROAD

L

50
.0

0'

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#3

SW
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
56

.6
1 

N
AV

D
88

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

IT
C

H

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

57

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

56

G
R

AV
EL

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

G
R

AV
EL

G
R

AV
EL

F/
F 

75
9.

53

F/
F 

76
1.

40

BR
IC

K
PI

LL
AR

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#2

N
E 

BO
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
60

.4
0 

N
AV

D
88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#1

N
W

 B
O

LT
 O

N
 F

H
EL

EV
. 7

64
.1

1 
N

AV
D

88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#4

SE
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
54

.0
2 

N
AV

D
88

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
BR

IC
K 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

G
/F

 7
61

.2
8

G
/F

 7
59

.4
9

G
/F

 7
59

.5
3

G
AT

E

G
AT

E

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.2

0
IN

V 
75

5.
39

 N
 1

2"
 C

M
P

IN
V 

75
5.

34
 E

&W
 1

8"
 C

M
P

N
IC

O
R

M
AR

KE
R

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

12
"

12
"

W
AL

LSI
G

N

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

F/
F 

75
9.

55

T/
F 

75
9.

52

T/
F 

76
1.

46

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"
6"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"10
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
" 12

"

12
"

15
"

CL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

B6 CURB (TYP.)
FE

N
C

E 
AN

D
 G

AR
BA

G
E

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E 

10
' X

 1
2'

6

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

3
0
'

1
5
'

0
3
0
'

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

REPLACE WITH
DEPRESSED CURB

TO
P 

O
F 

BE
R

M

TO
P 

O
F 

PO
N

D

R
ED

 S
U

N
SE

T 
M

AP
LE

Ac
er

 F
re

em
an

ii
9 

EA
.

AL
PI

N
E 

C
U

R
R

EN
T

R
ib

es
 a

lp
in

um
8 

EA
.

TA
U

N
TO

N
 Y

EW
Ta

xu
s 

m
ed

ia
 x

. T
au

nt
on

ii
8 

EA
.

EM
ER

AL
D

 G
R

EE
N

 A
R

BO
R

VI
TA

E
Th

uj
a 

oc
ci

de
nt

al
is

45
 E

A.

FI
R

E 
C

H
IE

F 
AR

BO
R

VI
TA

E
Th

uj
a 

oc
ci

de
nt

al
is

 x
. F

ire
 C

hi
ef

45
 E

A.

H
AP

PY
 R

ET
U

R
N

S 
D

AY
LI

LY
H

em
er

oc
al

lis
 x

. H
ap

py
 R

et
ur

ns
60

 E
A.

SA
LT

 T
O

LE
R

AN
T 

SO
D

M
U

LC
H

LE
G

EN
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN



7

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHOTOMETRICS PLAN



75
7.9

6E
P

75
7.9

9E
P

75
7.8

1E
P

75
8.2

5E
P75

8.6
4E

P
75

8.8
8E

P

75
8.5

7B
C

75
8.1

9B
C 75

8.0
2B

C
75

8.2
9B

C

76
0.2

0B
C

76
0.2

3B
C

75
8.8

9B
C

75
8.5

6E
P

75
8.6

2E
P

75
9.0

5E
P

75
9.2

2E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

75
9.6

3E
P

76
0.6

2B
C

76
0.6

6B
C

76
0.1

7E
P

76
0.1

2E
P

F.
I.P

. 1
/2

"

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"
0.

97
' N

 &
 O

N
 L

IN
E

F.
I.P

. 3
/4

"

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"
F.

I.R
. 9

/1
6"

A
T 

C
O

R
N

ER

F.
I.R

. 9
/1

6"

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

66
0.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

57
7.

00
'

330.00'

C ONTARIO STREET

W. LARAWAY ROAD

L

50
.0

0'

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#3

SW
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
56

.6
1 

N
AV

D
88

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

IT
C

H

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
TR

AN
SF

O
R

M
ER

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

57

D
O

C
K 

FL
O

O
R

75
9.

56

G
R

AV
EL

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

G
R

AV
EL

G
R

AV
EL

F/
F 

75
9.

53

F/
F 

76
1.

40

BR
IC

K
PI

LL
AR

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#2

N
E 

BO
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
60

.4
0 

N
AV

D
88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#1

N
W

 B
O

LT
 O

N
 F

H
EL

EV
. 7

64
.1

1 
N

AV
D

88

SI
TE

 B
EN

C
H

M
AR

K 
#4

SE
 B

O
LT

 O
N

 F
H

EL
EV

. 7
54

.0
2 

N
AV

D
88

1 
ST

O
R

Y 
BR

IC
K 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

G
/F

 7
61

.2
8

G
/F

 7
59

.4
9

G
/F

 7
59

.5
3

G
AT

E

G
AT

E

M
AN

H
O

LE
R

IM
 7

58
.2

0
IN

V 
75

5.
39

 N
 1

2"
 C

M
P

IN
V 

75
5.

34
 E

&W
 1

8"
 C

M
P

N
IC

O
R

M
AR

KE
R

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

BR
IC

K 
PI

LL
AR

12
"

12
"

W
AL

LSI
G

N

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

W
AL

L

F/
F 

75
9.

55

T/
F 

75
9.

52

T/
F 

76
1.

46

6" 6"

6"

6"

6" 6"
6"

8"

8"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
"

10
" 10

"10
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
" 12

"

12
"

15
"

CL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

U
R

B

B6 CURB (TYP.)

30
' L

O
N

G
D

EL
IV

ER
Y 

TR
U

C
K

FE
N

C
E 

AN
D

 G
AR

BA
G

E
EN

C
LO

SU
R

E 
10

' X
 1

2'

8

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

3
0
'

1
5
'

0
3
0
'

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

REPLACE WITH
DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEHICLE TURNING EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:



PR
OP

OS
ED

PR
OP

OS
ED

LE
SS

 T
HA

N 
10

 FE
ET

PR
EC

AS
T

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
W

AL
L 

C
AP

8"
 C

M
U

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

 W
AL

L

#5
 H

O
R

IZ
O

N
TA

L 
BA

R
 A

T
TO

P,
 M

ID
D

LE
 A

N
D

 B
AS

E

#5
 V

ER
TI

C
AL

 B
AR

@
 3

2"
 O

.C
.

1/
2"

 J
O

IN
T 

w
/S

EA
LA

N
T

6"
 S

.O
.G

. w
/#

4 
BA

R
S

@
 2

4"
 O

.C
. E

AC
H

W
AY

 O
VE

R
 O

VE
R

 4
"

FR
EE

 D
R

AI
N

IN
G

G
R

AN
U

LA
R

 F
IL

L
EX

IS
T.

 G
R

AD
E

#5
 D

O
W

EL
@

 3
2"

 O
.C

.
AL

TE
R

N
AT

E
D

IR
EC

TI
O

N

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
FO

O
TI

N
G

3'
#5

 B
AR

 @
 3

2"
 O

.C
.

(3
) #

5 
BA

R
S

FR
O

ST
 D

EP
TH

(3
' M

IN
IM

U
M

)

1'

6'

TY
PI

C
AL

 W
AL

L 
SE

C
TI

O
N

LI
D

 E
M

BO
SS

ED
 W

IT
H

"S
TO

R
M

" A
N

D
"V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

R
O

M
EO

VI
LL

E"

6'

3'
3'

3'
3'

8'

6"
 M

IN
.

6"
 M

IN
.

9

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACTED CA-6 STONE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/#10 WIRE MESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL #4 REINFORCING BARS, 12" LONG, EMBEDDED 6", AT ALL CONNECTIONS BETWEEN NEW AND EXISTING SIDEWALKS. (TYP. FOR 3) BARS SHALL BE SPACED A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES FROM EACH OTHER AND FROM EDGES OF WALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  ALL SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ALL SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT CLASS "SI" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,500 PSI AT 14 DAYS 2. PREFORMED EXPANSION JOINTS (3/4" PREFORMED EXPANSION JOINTS (3/4" THICK) SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN SIDEWALK EVERY 100 FEET AND AT ALL ABUTTING DRIVEWAYS AND CURB AND GUTTER. 3. TOOLED CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE TOOLED CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN SIDEWALK EVERY FIVE FEET. 4. SIDEWALK SHALL HAVE 1/4" PER FOOT SIDEWALK SHALL HAVE 1/4" PER FOOT CROSS-SLOPE. 5. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE TESTED PER VILLAGE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE TESTED PER VILLAGE CODE 6. SIDEWALK SHALL CONFORM TO IDOT SIDEWALK SHALL CONFORM TO IDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND  FOR ROAD AND FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION..

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC TRUCK DOCK PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" P.C.C PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CA-6 BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. ALL TRUCK DOCK PAVEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT ALL TRUCK DOCK PAVEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT CLASS "Si" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4,000 PSI AT 14 DAYS. 2. TRUCK DOCK CONCRETE SHALL CONTAIN #6 WIRE MESH. TRUCK DOCK CONCRETE SHALL CONTAIN #6 WIRE MESH. 3. CONCRETE SHALL BE A 6 BAG MIXTURE. CONCRETE SHALL BE A 6 BAG MIXTURE. 4. EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL NOT EXCEED SPACING EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL NOT EXCEED SPACING REQUIREMENTS PROVIDED IN IDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT CROSS SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" BITUMINOUS SURFACE COURSE, N-70

AutoCAD SHX Text
CA-6 BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" BITUMINOUS CONCRETE BINDER COURSE, N-70

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORPORATION STOP COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAP SERVICE PIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP - COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL TAP SERVICE PIPING (COPPER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DRAWING NO.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER TUBING - TYPE "K"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH VARIABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPENDING ON FROSTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"WATER" ON LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONNECTION SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK OR BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER AND SEWER SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS HORIZONTAL SEPARATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DRAWING NO.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' HORIZONTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OR EXISTING SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OR EXISTING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEN PROPOSED SEWER (OR WATER) IS LOCATED 10 FEET OR MORE FROM  SEWER (OR WATER) IS LOCATED 10 FEET OR MORE FROM EXISTING WATER (OR SEWER), NO SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION REQUIRED.  SEE ARTICLE 41-2.01A (1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEN PROPOSED SEWER (OR WATER) IS LOCATED LESS THAN 10 FEET FROM  SEWER (OR WATER) IS LOCATED LESS THAN 10 FEET FROM  FROM EXISTING WATER (OR SEWER), DETAILS BELOW SHALL APPLY.  SEE ARTICLE 41-2.01B (2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
< 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OR EXISTING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OR EXISTING SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC TRUCK LANDING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CA-6 BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 REBAR 5" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUN FULL LENGTH OF PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5" P.C.C PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. ALL TRUCK LANDING PAD PAVEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH ALL TRUCK LANDING PAD PAVEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT CLASS "Si" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4,000 PSI AT 14 DAYS. 2. CONCRETE SHALL BE A 6 BAG MIXTURE. CONCRETE SHALL BE A 6 BAG MIXTURE. 3. EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL NOT EXCEED SPACING EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL NOT EXCEED SPACING REQUIREMENTS PROVIDED IN IDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMU DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST JORDAN IRON WORKS 1022Z3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE BLACK VINYL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN ACCESSIBLE HANDICAP PARKING STALL DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C OF RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE STRIPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 3'-0" CTRS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN (TYP) WITH $100 FINE SIGN MUTCD R7-8, 12"x18" ILL. STD. R7-1101, 12"x6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE MOUNTED BEHIND SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER TIGHT VALVE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  1  OF  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE   11-20-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
IL-620

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' Max

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Typ)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Typ)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fastener - Min. No. 10 Gage Wire 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 Per Post Required. (Typ.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Filter Fabric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Filter Fabric 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
Direction Of Flow 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Undisturbed Ground Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Compacted Backfill

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC ANCHOR DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Temporary sediment fence shall be installed prior to any grading work in the area to be protected. They shall be maintained throughout the construction period and removed in conjunction with the final grading and site stabilization. Filter fabric shall meet the requirements of material specification 592 Geotextile Table 1 or 2, Class I with equivalent opening size of at least 30 for nonwoven and 50 for woven.  Fence posts shall be either standard steel post or wood post with a minimum cross-sectional area of 3.0 sq. in. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.  2.  3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHING TWO SILT FENCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
Filter Fabric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text
Step 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Step 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Step 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Filter Fabric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  2  OF  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE   1-29-99

AutoCAD SHX Text
IL-620(W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. 2. 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Place the end post of the second fence inside the end post of the first fence. Rotate both posts at least 180 degrees in a clockwise direction to create a tight seal with the fabric material. Drive both posts a minimum of 18 inches into the ground and bury the flap.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DWG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  1  OF  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE   4-7-94

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
IL-690

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' Max

AutoCAD SHX Text
40" Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ground Surface

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drip Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST AND FENCE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
The fence shall be located a minimum of 1 foot outside the drip line of the tree to be saved and in no case closer than 5 feet to the trunk of any tree.  Fence posts shall be either standard steel posts or wood posts with a minumum cross sectional area of 3.0 sq. in.  The fence may be either 40" high snow fence, 40" plastic web fencing or any other material as approved by the engineer/inspector.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.  2.  3.



10

3/28/2022 2:49:03 PM
I:\2021\21-03\2002 - 9350 West Laraway Road, Frankfort\Engineering\Rev 1\21-03-2002-SITE-2022-03-14.dwg

P
R

O
J 

#

B ETTER    I N F R ASTRUCTURE
I VNE    RETTEB  R O N M ENTS!        E FI      L          R E T T E  B

Morris Engineering, Inc.
Civil Engineering • Consulting

Land Surveying
515 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: (630) 271-0770
Survey: (630) 271-0599

FAX: (630) 271-0774
 Website: www.ecivil.com

21
-0

3-
20

02

6

5/
05

/2
02

1

EFASC
JSPW

9350 W. LARAWAY ROAD
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF____SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CREW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
___

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:



mschwarz
Received


	May 26, 2022
	PC Minutes 5.12.22 DRAFT
	B. Approval of the Minutes from April 14, 2022
	C. Approval of the Minutes from April 28, 2022
	Schwarz noted several corrections to the minutes and read them aloud.
	D. Plan Commissioner Training Session
	Phil Green, AICP, Transportation and Long-Range Planner for the Village of Hoffman Estates, and Tom Farace, AICP, Planning and Economic Development Manager for the Village of Carol Stream, presented the Plan Commissioner training session organized thr...

	Binder1_Gutschenritter
	Binder 1
	Staff Report-Gutschenritter
	Binder1
	GIS out
	GIS in
	Existing Survey 142 Walnut (Lot 4)
	Existing Survey 150 Walnut (Lot 6)
	Proposed Survey 150 Walnut (Lot 2)
	Proposed Survey 142 Walnut (Lot 1)
	Tax Map
	Plat of Resubdivision 5.13.22



	Binder1-Gale
	Staff report 5.26.22 public hearing - Gale
	GIS map
	Survey
	Plans 4.15.22
	Findings of Face - variance
	HOA approval

	Binder1-Pickleball
	Staff Report PH 5.26.22
	Binder1
	Binder1
	GIS Map 1-6000
	GIS Map 1-2500
	Alta Plat of Survey - Plat of Subdivision
	Description of use
	SUP findings of fact
	Site Plan 5.13.22
	Landscape Plan 4.18.22
	Photometric Plan 5.17.22
	Elevations 4.14.22
	Floorplan 4.12.22
	Pics 2 per page

	Trash enclosure detail 5.17.22


	Binder1-Chase
	Binder1
	Chase Bank 20801 S La Grange VAR WRKSHP 5.26.22
	GIS out
	GIS in
	Plat of Survey
	Proposal Summary Narrative
	Photographic Simulation 5.5.22
	Construction drawings 5.5.22
	All pics-2 per page
	Google Street View - September
	Google Street View - November
	Google Street View - December

	Findings of Fact 5.19.22

	Binder1-Facen4Wards
	20879 La Grange (Facen4Ward banquet) - Workshop
	GIS out 1-6000
	GIS in 1-1500
	Survey
	Floorplan existing 4.15.22
	Floorplan proposed 4.15.22
	Background (narrative) 4.15.22
	Findings of Fact (applicant responses)
	All pics - 2 per page

	Staff Report for PC-ZBA WORKSHOP 5-26-22 + Attachments (Reduced File Size)

